
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Audit and Governance Committee 

Date: Thursday, 10th March, 2022 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Minutes  4 - 10 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 21 December 2021. 

 

 
3   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
4   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
5   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press  

 

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 
6   External Audit Progress report  11 - 22 

Public Document Pack



 To consider the report of the external auditor.  
 
7   Audit Strategy Memorandum  23 - 54 

 To consider the report from the external auditor.  
 
8   2021-22 AGC Internal Audit Q3 Report  55 - 61 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer 

 

 
9   Accounting Policies 2021/22  62 - 64 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer. 

 

 
10   2021-22 AGC Counter Fraud Team Q3 Report  65 - 67 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer 

 

 
11   2022-23 AGC Internal Audit Plan Report  68 - 92 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer 

 

 
12   Contract Procedure Rules  93 - 146 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Monitoring Officer. 

 

 
13   Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2021/22  147 - 160 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

Audit and Governance Committee Members 
Councillor Ali Ahmed Craig Ainsworth 
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor Allen Brett 
Miranda Carruthers-Watt Councillor James Gartside 



 

Councillor Aftab Hussain Councillor Donna Martin E 
Councillor Philip Massey Jaime Sanderson 
Councillor Donna Williams Councillor Sameena Zaheer 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James 
01706 924715 



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 21 December 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Zaheer (Chair); Councillors  Sultan, Brett, 
James Gartside and P. Massey. 
 
OFFICERS: A. Ibrahim (Monitoring Officer), J. Murphy (Chief Finance Officer), 
M. Nixon (Head of Risk and Insurance), S. Knowles (Head of Internal Audit), 
L. Steel (Counter Fraud Team), M. Garraway (Head of Governance). 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  C. Ainsworth (Independent Person); K. Murphy 
and A. Peyton (Mazars). 
 

61 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Aftab Hussain, 
Councillor Donna Martin, Councillor Donna Williams; Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
and Jaime Sanderson. 
 

62 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 27th September 2021 be approved as a correct 
record. 

 
63 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

64 COUNCILLOR DISPENSATIONS 
The Committee considered the report of the Monitoring Officer which advised 
that in certain circumstances Councillors may be granted a dispensation 
which enables them to take part in Council business where this would 
otherwise be prohibited because they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  
 
Provided Councillors act within the terms of their dispensation there is 
deemed to be no breach of the Code of Conduct or the law. 
 
Section 31(4) of the Localism Act states that dispensations may allow the 
Councillor: 

a) to participate, or participate further, in any discussion of the matter at 
the meeting (s); and/or 

b) to participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the 
meeting(s). 

 
If a dispensation is granted, the Councillor may remain in the room where the 
meeting considering the business is being held. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



The Audit and Governance Committee is responsible for promoting high 
standards of ethical behaviour by developing, maintaining and monitoring the 
Member Code of Conduct. The Terms of Reference for the Committee 
include: 
‘Granting dispensations under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 to 
enable a Member or co-opted Member to participate in a meeting of the 
Authority.’ 
 
The Committee may therefore grant dispensations from the requirements of 
the Code of Conduct in limited circumstances to enable those members with a 
disclosable pecuniary interest (“DPI”) to participate and vote on a matter in 
which they have a prejudicial or DPI 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Audit and Governance Committee approves the following 
dispensations for all Members of Rochdale Council until 21 December 
2025: 
(a) Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to Councillors; 
(b) Any Ceremonial Honours given to Councillors; 
(c) Statutory sick pay under Part X1 of the Social Security Contributions 
and Benefits Act 1992 where they were in receipt of or entitled to 
receive such pay; 
(d) Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 (or any subsequent legislation); 
(e) Setting a Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme or Local scheme for 
the payment of business rates (Including eligibility for rebates and 
reductions) for the purposes of the Local Government Finance Act 
2012 (or any subsequent legislation); 
(f) School Meals or School Transport or Travelling expenses where the 
Councillor is a parent/guardian of a child in full time education or a 
parent governor (unless the matter relates specifically to the school the 
child attends); 
(g) To the extent that it may amount to a prejudicial or disclosable 
pecuniary interest, any allowance or other remuneration received from 
the Council in respect of Council duties or directorships of Council 
owned ASDVs; and 
(h) To allow Councillors to take part and vote on Community 
Governance Review matters in which they have disclosable pecuniary 
and prejudicial interests. 

 
 

65 INTERIM POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which advised that following the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England’s (LGBCE) Electoral Review of Rochdale, the Rochdale (Electoral 
Changes) Order 2021 has now been enacted making provision for 20 new 
ward boundaries to come into effect at the local elections in May 2022. 
 
Although the LGBCE’s Electoral Review of Rochdale concluded that the 
Council should continue to be represented by 60 Councillors in 20 wards, in 

Page 5



practice there will be extensive changes to existing boundaries along with the 
addition of one ward name change. 
 
In preparation for these new ward boundaries coming into effect, it has been 
necessary to undertake an interim review of the borough’s polling districts and 
polling places to ensure adequate voting arrangements are in place. 
 
The primary purpose of the review is to ensure that there is an alignment of 
polling districts with the new ward boundaries in time for the local government 
elections in May 2022. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Committee recommends to Council the approval of the 
proposed pattern of new polling districts and polling places as set out in 
the submission documents appended to the report. 

 
66 LOCAL GOVERNMENT & SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN  ANNUAL 

REVIEW 2020/2021 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which provided Members with the Annual Review of complaints made to the 
Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) about Rochdale 
Borough Council in the year ending 31 March 2021. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the report and Annual Review letter from the Local Government & 
Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) about Rochdale Borough Council 
for the year ending 31 March 2021 be noted. 

 
67 EXTERNAL AUDITOR ANNUAL REPORT 

The Committee considered the Annual Report from the External Auditor, 
Mazars. 
 
An unqualified opinion was issued on the financial statements on 28th 
September 2021. In relation to Value for Money arrangements, no significant 
weaknesses in arrangements were identified and there were no 
recommendations arising. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Annual Report from the External Auditor be noted. 
 
 

68 GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
The Committee considered the report of the Monitoring Officer which advised 
that the Governance Framework sets out our internal structures, roles and 
responsibilities for governance. It's what we have in place to ensure we have 
good governance and that our Code of Corporate Governance is adhered to 
in our day to day operations and the delivery of council services. 
 
This Framework brings together legislative requirements, governance 
principles and management processes. This ensures that, whatever executive 

Page 6



arrangements are in place, the way we operates is based on sound decision 
making with an effective process to support it. 
 
The Framework is intended to be followed as best practice for developing and 
maintaining a local code of governance and for discharging accountability for 
the proper conduct of public business, through the publication of the annual 
governance statement. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the revised Governance Framework be noted; 
2. That the revised Code of Corporate Governance be noted; 
3. That the revised Governance Framework for Significant Partnerships 

be noted. 
 

69 ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Internal Audit which 
advised that the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy recognises that the Council 
as a large organisation is at risk of loss due to fraud and corruption both from 
within the Council and outside it. 
 
In meeting the Council’s responsibilities relating to fraud and corruption, 
whether attempted internally or externally, the Council is committed to an 
effective anti-fraud and corruption policy designed to: 

 encourage prevention; 
 promote detection; 
 ensure effective investigation where suspected fraud or corruption has 

occurred; and 
 prosecute offenders where appropriate. 

There is an expectation and requirement that all members, employees, 
consultants, contractors, and service users be fair and honest, and if able to 
do so, provide help, information and support to assist the investigation of fraud 
and corruption. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy be approved. 
 

70 CONSTITUTION UPDATE - PROPER OFFICER LIST 
The Committee considered the report of the Monitoring Officer which advised 
that the Proper Officer list within the Council’s constitution needed to be 
updated to include persons appointed as Consultants in Health Protection and 
/ or Consultants in Communicable Disease Control under the provision of The 
Health Protection (Notification) Regulations 2010 (Regulations 2, 3 and 6). 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Committee notes the decision of the Monitoring Officer to 
update the list of Statutory and Proper Officers in the Constitution in 
relation to the functions as required by The Health Protection 
(Notification) Regulations 2010 (Regulations 2, 3 and 6). 

 

Page 7



71 2021-22 AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE INTERNAL AUDIT Q2 
REPORT 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Internal Audit which 
summarised the work of the Internal Audit team during Q2 of financial year 
2021/22. 
 
51% of the agreed Audit Plan completed ahead of the agreed plan (44%) 
 
A substantial or adequate assurance opinion was given for all audits 
completed during the period. 
 
Although Q2 had no ‘limited assurance’ audits, two have been issued / are 
due to be issued during Q3. A full update of these will be given as part of the 
Q3 report. 
 
The Special Guardianship Orders Audit Report highlighted some procedural 
concerns with regard to documented processes and financial reviews. These 
have been discussed with the Director of Children’s Services. 
 
The Allis Audit Report in Adult Care highlighted concerns over training and the 
recording of information 
 
Progress has been made against recommendations in the ‘limited’ assurance 
Corporate Electronic Records Management Audit Report issued during Q1. 
Details are given in section 6.02 of this report. 
 
The Audit Plan is designed to be fluid and amendments have been made to 
reflect changes within RBC. These changes are detailed in Appendix C. 
 
In response to a question from a Member of the Committee with regard to the 
timeframe for school audits and whether the timescales reflected best 
practice, it was agreed to bring a report to the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the Internal Audit Quarter Two Report 2021/22 be noted. 
 

72 2021-22 AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE COUNTER FRAUD Q2 
REPORT 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Internal Audit that 
summarised the work of the Counter Fraud Team during the second quarter of 
2021/22. 
 
The Counter Fraud Team have received 202 referrals during the period and 
have achieved £166,128 in overpayments and savings. 
 
Covid-19 continues to account for a significant amount of the Counter Fraud 
Team’s time and resource with over 1700 business checks conducted 
 
60 allegations of COVID-19 business grant fraud are under investigation. 

Page 8



 
85 allegations relating to Test & Trace are also under investigation. 
 
Replies have been made to over 135 Data Protection Requests 
 
The impact of the pandemic had meant that interviews under caution were 
suspended on health & safety grounds. They have now recommenced and 
three interviews have been conducted in quarter two. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Counter Fraud Team Quarter Two Report 2021/22 be noted. 
 

73 APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 2023/2024 – 2027/2028 
The Committee considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
advised that The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) at Section 
7 states that a “relevant authority must appoint a local auditor to audit its 
accounts for a financial year not later than 31 December in the preceding 
financial year.”  
 
The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and 
including the audit of the 2022/23 accounts. 
 
The report set out the options open to the Council and the basis of officers’ 
recommendation to Audit and Governance Committee to opt into the national 
arrangement with PSAA. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the options for the procurement of external audit services be 
noted and that support be given to the preferred option to opt into the 
sector-led option through PSAA for the appointment of external 
auditors to principal local government and police bodies for five 
financial years from 1st April 2023. 

2. That the Chair, in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer be 
authorised to agree the final recommendation to Full Council before 
March 2022. 

 
74 RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q2 2021/22 

The Committee considered the report of the Risk and Insurance Manager 
which provided a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work during 
Quarter 2 of the 2021/22 year. 
 
Reviews of the Corporate risk registers managed by both the Council and the 
Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) have 
been completed. There are no Red risks to report within either the RBC 
Corporate risk register or the risk registers of individual RBC Services. 
 
A reissued RBC Risk Management Policy was presented for review and 
comment. The Policy aims to provide clarity on current risk management 
objectives, responsibilities and processes. 

Page 9



 
The Insurance team achieved a claims cost mitigation result of £438,842 for 
the claims closed in the quarter. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2021/22 be noted. 
 

75 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved: 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following four items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
 
Reason for the Decision:  
Should the press and public remain during the debate on the following items, 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under 
Parts 1 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

76 RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT Q2 2021/22  - CONFIDENTIAL 
APPENDIX 
Resolved: 

1. That the confidential appendix relating to the Risk Management 
Progress Report - Q2 2021/22 report be noted. 

 

Page 10



Audit Progress Report

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



2

1. Audit progress
2. National publications

P
age 12



Section 01:
Audit progress

P
age 13



1 March 2022 4

Audit progress

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors and also includes, at Section 2, for your 
information, a summary of recent national reports and publications.  

Audit Progress

The work detailed below has been carried out since the last Audit Committee meeting in December 2021:

• Held planning meetings with Council officers to understand key issues for 2021/22

• Competed preliminary analytical review procedures based on in-year financial monitoring information

• Updating our understanding of the Council, including the use of experts, processes for calculating accounting estimates and governance arrangements 

• Documenting our understanding of the key financial systems relevant to the financial statements, and the key controls that the Council has in place to prevent, detect and 
correct material misstatements to the financial statements

• Carrying out walkthrough tests of key controls to confirm that they are operating in the manner they have been designed

• Continuing discussions with finance officers about our 2021/22 final audit visit and key issues brought to our attention by officers. 

There are no matters to bring to the attention of the Audit Committee from our work completed to date. 

P
age 14



Section 02:
National publications

P
age 15



6
National publications

Publication/update Key points

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountability (CIPFA)

1. New Prudential and Treasury Management Codes These two statutory and professional codes are important regulatory elements of the capital finance framework 
within which local authorities operate.

2.

Emergency proposals for an update of the 
2021/22 Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom and the 
2022/23 Code

CIPFA published a consultation on emergency proposals for the update of the 2021/22 (and 2022/23) 
Code. They are aimed at improving the completion rates for publication of audited accounts and include:
• delaying the implementation of IFRS 16 for at least 1 year, so the implementation date would now be 1 April 

2023 at the earliest; and
• allowing for an optional pause of the property revaluation cycle.

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

3. Consultation on changes to the capital framework: 
Minimum Revenue Provision

This consultation seeks views on proposed changes to regulations to better enforce the duty of local authorities 
to make prudent Minimum Revenue Provision each year.

4. Measures to improve local audit delays and 
accounts and audit timetable confirmed

DLUHC have announced a new package of measure to support the improved timeliness of local audit. These 
include additional funds and an extension of the deadline for publishing accounts.

National Audit Office (NAO)

5. 
The Government’s preparedness for the COVID-
19 pandemic: lessons learned for government on 
risk management

The report sets out central government’s risk analysis, planning, and mitigation strategies prior to the arrival of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, with the aim of drawing out wider learning for the government’s overall approach.

6. Departmental Overview 2020-21: Department for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities

This provides a summary of the Department’s spending in 2020-21, its major areas of activity and performance, 
and the challenges it is likely to face in the coming year.

7. AGN/03 – Auditor’s work on Value for Money 
Arrangements – Updated Guidance 

NAO has updated its guidance and confirmed there are no significant changes to the expected approach or 
timetable.

P
age 16



7
NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA
1.  CIPFA publishes new Prudential and Treasury Management Codes, December 2021

CIPFA has published the new Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (Prudential Code) and Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice 
and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (the Treasury Management Code) following a consultation period. These two statutory and professional codes are important regulatory 
elements of the capital finance framework within which local authorities operate. Local authorities are required by regulation to 'have regard to' their provisions. Guidance 
notes will follow shortly in the new year.

The updated Prudential Code includes the following as the focus of the substantive changes: 

• The provisions in the code, which present the approach to borrowing in advance of need in order to profit from additional sums borrowed, have been strengthened. The 
relevant parts of the code have augmented to be clear that borrowing for debt-for-yield investment is not permissible under the Prudential Code. This recognises that 
commercial activity is part of regeneration but underlines that such transactions do not include debt-for yield as the primary purpose of the investment or represent an 
unnecessary risk to public funds.

• Proportionality has been included as an objective in the Prudential Code. New provisions have been added so that an authority incorporates an assessment of risk to 
levels of resources used for capital purposes.

The main changes to the updated Treasury Management Code and the accompanying guidance for local authorities are as follows:

• Investment management practices and other recommendations relating to non-treasury investments are included within the Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) 
alongside existing TMPs.

• The guidance will recommend the introduction of the Liability Benchmark as a treasury management indicator for local government bodies (note that CIPFA has issued a 
toolkit to assist local authorities with the production of this indicator).

• Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) risks are incorporated into TMP1 (Risk Management) rather than a separate TMP 13.

• The purpose and objective of each category of investments should be described within the Treasury Management Strategy.

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-issues-new-prudential-and-treasury-management-codes

P
age 17

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-issues-new-prudential-and-treasury-management-codes


8
NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
CIPFA 
2. Emergency proposals for an update of the 2021/22 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and the 2022/23 Code, February 
2022

CIPFA LASAAC has issued an exceptional consultation on time limited changes to the code to help alleviate delays to the publication of audited financial statements. Only 
9% of local authority accounts in England met the audit publication deadline of 30 September 2021. The consultation closes on 3 March 2022. 

In December 2021, the Department of Levelling-up Housing and Communities asked CIPFA LASAAC to consider ways in which the code may ameliorate this crisis position. 
CIPFA LASAAC considered this request and has issued this exceptional consultation, which explores two possible changes that might be made as an update to the 2021/22 
code and to the agreed position in the 2022/23 code. After considering a wide range of options CIPFA LASAAC decided to explore two approaches: 

• an adaptation to the code to allow local authorities to pause professional valuations for operational property, plant and equipment for a period of up to two years (though 
the initial proposal is for the 2021/22 financial year); this approach also explores the use of an index to be used to increase or reduce that valuation

• deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases for a further year and reversing the planned changes to the 2022/23 code to implement that standard. 

The consultation also shows the wide range of options that CIPFA LASAAC considered, which includes some which the board considered were outside of its terms of 
reference. 

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes

P
age 18

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/emergency-proposals-for-update-of-202122-and-2022223-codes


9
NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
3.  Consultation on changes to the capital framework: Minimum Revenue Provision, December 2021

This consultation seeks views on proposed changes to regulations to better enforce the duty of local authorities to make prudent Minimum Revenue Provision each year.

Local authorities borrow and invest under the Prudential Framework (the Framework), which comprises legislation and 4 statutory codes that authorities must have regard 
to. Under this system, authorities have wide freedoms to borrow and invest without the need to seek the government’s consent, provided that borrowing is affordable. The 
intent of the Framework is to make sure local decisions are prudent, affordable and sustainable.

The government is aware that some authorities employ practices that are not fully compliant with the duty to make a prudent revenue provision, resulting in underpayment of 
MRP. This was reported in the NAO’s report Local Authority Investment in Commercial Property (February 2020) and the subsequent report by the Public Accounts 
Committee in July 2020, which recommended the government take steps to address the issue.

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-revenue-provision/consultation-on-changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-
revenue-provision#excluding-specific-debt-from-mrp-determination

4. A new package of measures to support the improved timeliness of local audit, December 2021

This publication sets out a range of measures agreed with key partners to support the timely completion of local government audits and the ongoing stability of the local 
audit market. The measures include:

• Steps to increase the number of auditors with skills to carry out the work;

• Additional funding to support increases in audit fees; and

• Extension of the audit deadlines to 30 November 2022 and 30 September for 2023 onwards.  

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/measures-to-improve-local-audit-delays?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=govuk-notifications&utm_source=81365e1a-e6b1-4c1b-bce1-
b5ef8fafef6f&utm_content=daily#section-4-longer-term-measures-to-help-stabilise-the-market-and-address-long-term-supply-issues

P
age 19

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-revenue-provision/consultation-on-changes-to-the-capital-framework-minimum-revenue-provision#excluding-specific-debt-from-mrp-determination


10
NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office
5. The Government’s preparedness for the COVID-19 pandemic: lessons learned for government on risk management, November 2021

In November 2021

This report sets out the facts on:
• the government’s approach to risk management and emergency planning (Part One);
• the actions the government took to identify the risk of a pandemic like COVID-19 (Part Two);
• the actions the government took to prepare for a pandemic like COVID-19 (Part Three); and
• recent developments (Part Four).
The report sets out central government’s risk analysis, planning, and mitigation strategies prior to the arrival of the COVID-19 pandemic, with the aim of drawing out wider 
learning for the government’s overall risk management approach.

The report concludes that this pandemic has exposed a vulnerability to whole-system emergencies – that is, emergencies that are so broad that they engage the entire 
system. Although the government had plans for an influenza pandemic, it did not have detailed plans for many non-health consequences and some health consequences of 
a pandemic like COVID-19. There were lessons from previous simulation exercises that were not fully implemented and would have helped prepare for a pandemic like 
COVID-19. There was limited oversight and assurance of plans in place, and many pre-pandemic plans were not adequate. In addition, there is variation in capacity, 
capability and maturity of risk management across government departments.

The pandemic also highlighted the need to strengthen the government’s end-to-end risk management process to ensure that it addresses all significant risks, including 
interdependent and systemic risks. This will require collaboration on risk identification and management not only across government departments and local authorities, but 
also with the private sector and internationally. For whole-system risks NAO states that the government needs to define its risk appetite to make informed decisions and 
prepare appropriately so that value for money can be protected. NAO state that the pandemic has also highlighted the need to strengthen national resilience to prepare for 
any future events of this scale, and the challenges the government faces in balancing the need to prepare for future events while dealing with day-to-day issues and current 
events.

The full report can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-governments-preparedness-for-the-covid-19-pandemic/

P
age 20

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-governments-preparedness-for-the-covid-19-pandemic/


11
NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS
National Audit Office
6. Departmental Overview 2020-21: Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, November 2021

This provides a summary of the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities’ spending in 2020-21, its major areas of activity and performance, and the 
challenges it is likely to face in the coming year, based on the insights from NAO’s financial audit and value for money work.

The full report can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-2020-21-department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities/

7. AGN/03 – Auditor’s work on Value for Money Arrangements – Updated Guidance, December 2021

NAO has updated its guidance and confirmed there are no significant changes to the expected approach or timetable for 2021/22 audits.

The guidance can be seen at this link: https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-information-for-auditors/

P
age 21

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/departmental-overview-2020-21-department-for-levelling-up-housing-and-communities/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/guidance-and-information-for-auditors/


Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 
and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 
expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 
Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

www.mazars.com

Partner: Karen Murray

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

LinkedIn:
www.linkedin.com/company/Mazars
Twitter:
www.twitter.com/MazarsGroup
Facebook:
www.facebook.com/MazarsGroup
Instagram:
www.instagram.com/MazarsGroup
WeChat:
ID: Mazars

Contact Follow us:

Manager: Amelia Salford

Email:  amelia.salford@mazars.co.uk

P
age 22



Audit Strategy Memorandum

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

Contents

Engagement and responsibilities summary

Your audit engagement team

Audit scope, approach and timeline

Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and other services

Our commitment to independence

Materiality and misstatements

Appendix – Key communication points

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Rochdale Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and Governance Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged with governance. No 

responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2

P
age 24



Members of the Audit & Governance Committee
Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Rochdale 
OL16 1XU

10 March 2022

Dear Audit and Governance Committee Members

Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2022 

We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for Rochdale Borough Council for the year ending 31 March 2022. The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight 
significant audit risks and areas of key judgements and provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its clients, section 
7 of this document also summarises our considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors. We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;

• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing Rochdale Borough 
Council which may affect the audit, including the likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

With that in mind, we see this document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, as being the basis for a discussion around our audit approach, any questions, 
concerns or input you may have on our approach or role as auditor. This document also contains an appendix that outlines our key communications with you during the course of the audit,

Client service is extremely important to us and we strive to provide technical excellence with the highest level of service quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you 
have any concerns or comments about this document or audit approach, please contact me on +44 (0)161 238 9248 .

Yours faithfully

Signed:

Karen Murray

Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP

One St Peter’s Square

Manchester

M2 3DE

Mazars LLP – One St Peter’s Square, Manchester, M2 3DE

Tel: 0161 238 9200 – www.mazars.co.uk

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, 

London E1W 1DD.

We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: 839 8356 73

P
age 25

http://www.mazars.co.uk/


Section 01:

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

P
age 26



Value for money

We are also responsible for forming a commentary on the 

arrangements that the Council has in place to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  

We discuss our approach to Value for Money work further in 

section 5 of this report.

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Audit opinion

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion 

on the financial statements. Our audit does not relieve 

management or the Audit and Governance Committee, as 

those charged with governance, of their responsibilities.

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the assessment 

of whether is it appropriate for the Council to prepare its 

accounts on a going concern basis. As auditors, we are 

required to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 

regarding, and conclude on: a) whether a material 

uncertainty related to going concern exists; and b) consider 

the appropriateness of the Chief Finance Officer’s use of the 

going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements.

Fraud

The responsibility for safeguarding assets and for the prevention and 

detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations 

rests with both those charged with governance and management. 

This includes establishing and maintaining internal controls over 

reliability of financial reporting.  

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to 

enquire of those charged with governance, including key 

management include Internal audit , other key individuals where 

relevant as to their knowledge of instances of fraud, the risk of fraud 

and their views on internal controls that mitigate the fraud risks. In 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan 

and perform our audit so as to obtain reasonable assurance that the 

financial statements taken as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. However our audit 

should not be relied upon to identify all such misstatements.

Wider reporting and electors’ rights

We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Council’s financial

statements with its Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)

submission.

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of

the elector, the opportunity to question us about the accounting

records of the Council and consider any objection made to the

accounts. We also have a broad range of reporting responsibilities

and powers that are unique to the audit of local authorities in the

United Kingdom

5

Responsibilities

Overview of engagement

We are appointed to perform the external audit of Rochdale Borough Council (the Council) for the year to 31 March 2022. The scope of our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-

auditors-and-audited-bodies/. Our responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office 

(NAO), as outlined below.

P
age 27

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/


Section 02:

Your audit engagement team

P
age 28



Karen.Murray@mazars.co.uk

Tel: +44 (0)161 238 9248 

Mobile: +44 (0)7721 234 043 

Amelia.Salford@mazars.co.uk

Tel: +44 (0)161 238 9308 

Mobile: +44 (0)7823 521 012

Dawn.Watson@mazars.co.uk

Tel: +44 (0)161 238 9238 

Mobile: +44 (0)7580 602 848

Katie.Kingston@mazars.co.uk

Tel:

Mobile: +44 (0)7580 414 565

2. Your audit engagement team

Karen Murray

Engagement Partner 

Amelia Salford

Engagement Manager

Dawn Watson

Engagement Manager

Katie Kingston

Audit Senior

7

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 29

mailto:Karen.Murray@mazars.co.uk
mailto:Amelia.Salford@mazars.co.uk
mailto:Dawn.Watson@mazars.co.uk
mailto:Katie.Kingston@mazars.co.uk


Section 03:

Audit scope, approach and timeline

8

P
age 30



3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Audit scope

Our audit is designed to comply with all professional requirements.

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance 
with the terms of our engagement. Our work is focused on those aspects of your activities which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those impacted by management 
judgement and estimation, application of new accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach

Our audit approach is risk-based and is primarily driven by the issues that we consider lead to a higher risk of material misstatement of the accounts. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we 
develop our audit strategy and design audit procedures in response to this assessment.

If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more 
efficient to do so, we may take a wholly substantive approach to our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and comprise: 
tests of details (of classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures); and substantive analytical procedures. Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our 
evaluation of the operating effectiveness of controls, we are required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and disclosure.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and 
how we define a misstatement is explained in more detail in section 8.

The diagram on the next page outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit.

9

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 31



10

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Planning: January 2022

• Planning visit and developing our understanding of the Council

• Initial opinion and value for money risk assessments

• Developing the audit strategy and planning the audit work to be 

performed

• Agreeing timetable and deadlines

• Preliminary analytical review

• Documenting systems and controls

• Performing walkthroughs

Completion: August 2022

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial statements

• Final partner review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee

• Reviewing subsequent events

• Signing the auditor’s report

Interim: February/ March 2022

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Considering proposed accounting treatments and accounting 

policies

• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

Fieldwork: June – August 2022

• Receiving and reviewing draft financial statements

• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

• Executing the strategy starting with significant risks and high risk 

areas

• Communicating progress and issues

• Clearance meeting

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 32



11

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Item of account Management’s expert Our expert

Long Term Investments: Valuation of Share Holding in 

Manchester Airport Holdings Ltd
BDO Mazars internal Valuations Team

Investment Property: Valuation of Manchester Airport Land Jacobs Mazars internal Property Valuations Team

Property, Plant & Equipment: Valuation of assets Rochdale Borough Council Valuations Team

We will use available third party information to 

challenge the key valuations assumptions. 

We may use the Mazars Property Valuation Team if 

necessary. 

Defined Benefit Liability Hymans Robertson Actuaries
PWC (Consulting actuary on behalf of the National 

Audit Office) 

Financial Instruments: Fair Value Disclosures Link Asset Services

We will review the methodology used by the expert to 

gain assurance that the fair value disclosures are 

materially correct

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Management’s and our experts

Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements.  We also use experts to assist us to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on 

specific items of account. 

P
age 33



Section 04:

Significant risks and other key 
judgement areas

12

P
age 34



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified 
risks relevant to the audit of financial statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as 
significant, enhanced or standard. The definitions of the level of risk rating are given below:

Significant risk

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s 
judgment, requires special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an 
understanding of the entity’s controls, including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk

An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level 
other than a significant risk. Enhanced risks require additional consideration but does not rise to the 
level of a significant risk, these include but may not be limited to:

• key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are 
not considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

• other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the 
period.

Standard risk

This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic 
processing and require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of 
material misstatement (RMM), there are no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely 
magnitude of the potential misstatements or the likelihood of the risk occurring. 

13

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Summary risk assessment

The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be 
significant and other enhanced risks in respect of the Council.  We have summarised our audit response 
to these risks on the next page.

Key:            Significant risk Enhanced risk / significant management judgement

3

2

1

4

H
ig

h

HighLow

L
o
w

Likelihood

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l im
p

a
c
t

1.  Management override of controls

2.  Valuation of net defined benefit pension 
liability

3.  Valuation of property, plant and equipment 
and investment properties

4.  Valuation of shareholding in the Manchester 
Airport Group PLC  

P
age 35



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Specific identified audit risks and planned testing strategy

We have presented below in more detail the reasons for the risk assessment highlighted above, and also our testing approach with respect to significant risks. An audit is a dynamic process, should we 
change our view of risk or approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will report this to the Audit and Governance Committee.

Significant risks

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

1 Management override of controls 

This is a mandatory significant risk on all audits due to the 

unpredictable way in which such override could occur.

Management at various levels within an organisation are in a 

unique position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to 

manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent 

financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise 

appear to be operating effectively. Due to the unpredictable 

way in which such override could occur there is a risk of 

material misstatement due to fraud on 

all audits.

We plan to address the management override of controls risk by  

performing audit work over: 

• accounting estimates;

• journal entries; and 

• significant transactions outside the normal course of business or 

that are otherwise unusual. 

14

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 36



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Significant risks

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

2 Net defined benefit liability valuation

The net pension liability represents a material element of the 

Council’s balance sheet. The Council is an admitted body of 

Greater Manchester Pension Fund, which had its last triennial 

valuation completed as at 31 March 2019.

The valuation of the Local Government Pension Scheme 

relies on a number of assumptions, most notably around the 

actuarial assumptions, and actuarial methodology which 

results in the Council’s overall valuation. There are financial 

assumptions and demographic assumptions used in the 

calculation of the Council’s valuation, such as the discount 

rate, inflation rates and mortality rates. The assumptions 

should also reflect the profile of the Council’s employees, and 

should be based on appropriate data. The basis of the 

assumptions is derived on a consistent basis year to year, or 

updated to reflect any changes.

There is a risk that the assumptions and methodology used in 

valuing the Council’s pension obligation are not reasonable or 

appropriate to the Council’s circumstances. This could have a 

material impact to the net pension liability in 2021/22.

To address this risk, we will: 

• review the controls the Council has in place over the information 

sent to the scheme Actuary, including the Council’s processes and 

controls with respect to the assumptions used in the valuation;

• evaluate the competency, objectivity and independence of the 

scheme Actuary, Hymans Robertson;

• review the appropriateness of the methodology applied, and the 

key assumptions included within the valuation, comparing them to 

the expected ranges, utilising the information provided by PwC, 

the consulting actuary engaged by the National Audit Office. 

• review the methodology applied in the valuation of the liability by 

Hymans Robertson. 

15

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 37



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Significant risks

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

3 Valuation of property, plant and equipment and 

investment properties

The CIPFA Code requires that where assets are subject to 

revaluation, their year end carrying value should reflect the 

fair value at that date. The Council has adopted a rolling 

revaluation model which sees all land and buildings revalued 

in a four year cycle. 

The valuation of property, plant & equipment and investment 

property involves the use of management experts, and 

incorporates assumptions and estimates which impact 

materially on the reported value. There are risks relating to 

the valuation process which reflect the significant impact of 

the valuation judgements and assumptions and the degree of 

estimation uncertainty. 

As a result of the rolling programme of revaluations, there is a 

risk that individual assets which have not been revalued for 

up to three years are not valued at their materially correct fair 

value. In addition, as the valuations are undertaken at the 

start of the year there is a risk that the fair value as the assets 

is materially different at the year end.

To address this risk, we will:

• assess the Council’s valuers’ qualifications, objectivity and 

independence to carry out such valuations

• review the valuation methodology used for assets subject to 

revaluation in 2021/22, including testing the underlying data and 

assumptions; 

• engage our internal valuations team as our auditors expert to 

review the valuations of the land at Manchester Airport

• review the approach the Council has adopted to address the risk 

that those assets not subject to valuation in the 2021/22 are 

materially misstated and consider the robustness of that approach 

in light of the valuation information reported by the Council’s 

valuers; and

• consider movements in market indices between valuation dates 

and the year end in order to determine whether these indicate fair 

valuers have moved materially over that time. 

16

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 38



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Other key areas of management judgement and enhanced risks

17

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

4 Valuation of shareholding in the Manchester Airport 

Group PLC 

The Council’s shareholding in the Manchester Airport Group 

PLC has been valued by a firm of financial experts  based on 

assumptions about financial performance, stability and key  

business projections.  The figure disclosed in your accounts 

in relation to Manchester Airport Holdings Limited is at fair 

value. 

There is a risk that the assumptions and methodology used 

by your experts are not appropriate and we will need to obtain 

assurance that accounting entries are not materially 

misstated.

We plan to address this risk by:

• Assessing the scope of work performed/terms of engagement, 

qualifications, objectivity and independence of the expert engaged 

to carry out the valuation assessment of the airport shares.

• Utilising the services of our internal valuation experts to review the 

work completed by  BDO as the Management expert and evaluate 

the appropriateness of the assumptions applied to arrive at the 

figure in the financial statements.

P
age 39



Section 05:

Value for money

18

P
age 40



19

5. Value for money

The framework for Value for Money work

We are required to form a view as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  The NAO issues guidance 
to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our view, and sets 
out the overall criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

2021/22 will be the second audit year where we are undertaking our value for money (VFM) work 
under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice (the Code).  Our responsibility remains to be satisfied that 
the Council has proper arrangements in place and to report in the audit report and/or the audit 
completion certificate where we identify significant weaknesses in arrangements.  Separately we 
provide a commentary on the Council’s arrangements in the Auditor’s Annual Report. 

Specified reporting criteria

The Code requires us to structure our commentary to report under three specified criteria:

1. Financial sustainability – how the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can 

continue to deliver its services

2. Governance – how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 

manages its risks

3. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – how the Council uses information 

about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

Our approach

Our work falls into three primary phases as outlined opposite.  We need to gather sufficient 
evidence to support our commentary on the Council’s arrangements and to identify and report on 
any significant weaknesses in arrangements.  Where significant weaknesses are identified we are 
required to report these to the Council and make recommendations for improvement.  Such 
recommendations can be made at any point during the audit cycle and we are not expected to 
wait until issuing our overall commentary to do so.

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Planning and risk 

assessment

Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s arrangements for each 

specified reporting criteria.  Relevant information sources will 

include:

• NAO guidance and supporting information

• Information from internal and external sources including 

regulators

• Knowledge from previous audits and other audit work undertaken 

in the year

• Interviews and discussions with staff and members

Additional risk 

based 

procedures and 

evaluation

Reporting

Where our planning work identifies risks of significant weaknesses, 

we will undertake additional procedures to determine whether there 

is a significant weakness.

We will provide a summary of the work we have undertaken and our 

judgements against each of the specified reporting criteria as part of 

our commentary on arrangements.  This will form part of the 

Auditor’s Annual Report.  

Our commentary will also highlight:

• Significant weaknesses identified and our recommendations for 

improvement

• Emerging issues or other matters that do not represent significant 

weaknesses but still require attention from the Council. 

P
age 41



Section 06:

Fees for audit and other services

20

P
age 42



6. Fees for audit and other services

Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor

Details of the proposed 2020/21 and 2021/22 fees are set out below:

Area of work 2021/22 Proposed Fee 2020/21 Proposed Fee

Planned fee in respect of our work under the Code of Audit Practice 105,007 105,007

Additional Testing on Property, Plant & Equipment and Defined Benefit Pensions Schemes as a 

result of changes in regulatory expectations
16,650 16,650

Additional testing as a result of the implementation of new auditing standards: ISA 220 (Revised); 

ISA 540 (Revised); ISA570 (Revised); and ISA 600 (Revised)
- 2,000

Other additional costs (2020/21 additional fees relate to additional work carried out by the audit 

team and auditor’s specialists on the following areas: Rochdale Town Hall valuation; and the new 

leases arrangements for Rochdale Riverside Shopping and Leisure complex) 

- 4,335

Additional work arising from the change in the Code of Audit Practice 10,000 12,000

Total Fees 131,657 139,992

21

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 43



Section 07:

Our commitment to independence

22

P
age 44



7. Our commitment to independence

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to 
you at least annually in writing that we comply with the FRC’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we 
communicate any matters or relationship which we believe may have a bearing on our independence 
or the objectivity of the 
audit team.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our 
independence as auditors, we confirm that in our professional judgement there are no relationships 
between us and any of our related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related entities creating 
any unacceptable threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional requirements 
governing us as your auditors.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work 
with integrity, objectivity and independence. These policies include:

• all partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

• all new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also 
complete computer based ethical training;

• rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team; 
and

• use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires 
all non-audit services to be approved in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as 
appropriate, Mazars LLP are independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if 
at any time you have concerns or questions about our integrity, objectivity or independence please 
discuss these with Karen Murray in the first instance.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Karen Murray will undertake appropriate procedures 
to consider and fully assess the impact that providing the service may have on our auditor 
independence.

No threats to our independence have been identified. 

Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards will be communicated in 
our Audit Completion Report.

23

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 45



Section 08:

Materiality and misstatements

24

P
age 46



8. Materiality and misstatements

Summary of initial materiality thresholds

Materiality

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the 
context of financial statements as a whole. 

Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in 
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the financial statements. 

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the 
size and nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based 
on consideration of the common financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific 
individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our 
perception of the financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our 
assessment we assume that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of 
estimates, judgement and the consideration of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial 
statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and 
qualitative factors. 

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material 
and which provides a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, 
identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent 
of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below 
which uncorrected misstatements, either individually or in aggregate, will be considered as 
immaterial. 

We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware 
of information that would have caused us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that 
information at the planning stage.

Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of gross revenue expenditure. We will 
identify a figure for materiality but identify separate levels for procedures designed to detect 
individual errors, and also a level above which all identified errors will be reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

We consider that gross revenue expenditure remains the key focus of users of the financial 
statements and, as such, we base our materiality levels around this benchmark. 

25

Threshold
Initial threshold

£’000s

Overall materiality 13,400

Performance materiality 10,720

Specific materiality for Senior Officers Remuneration 5

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit and 

Governance Committee
402

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 47



8. Materiality and misstatements

Materiality (continued)

We expect to set a materiality threshold at 2% of gross revenue expenditure. Based on 2020/21 
audited accounts gross revenue expenditure we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 
31 March 2022 to be in the region of £13.4m ( £13.3m in the prior year).  

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it 
is set at an appropriate level.

Performance Materiality

Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the 
financial statements as a whole to reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the 
aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent 
risk, meaning that we have applied 80% of overall materiality as performance materiality. 

Misstatements

We accumulate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial.  We set a 
level of triviality for individual errors identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit and 
Governance Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would not need 
to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  Based on our preliminary assessment of overall 
materiality, our proposed triviality threshold is £402k based on 3% of overall materiality.  If you have 
any queries about this please do not hesitate to raise these with Karen Murray.

Reporting to the Audit and Governance Committee

The following three types of audit differences above the trivial threshold will be presented to the Audit 
and Governance Committee:

• summary of adjusted audit differences;

• summary of unadjusted audit differences; and 

• summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

26

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 48



Appendix: Key communication points
A

27

P
age 49



Appendix: Key communication points

We value communication with Those Charged With Governance as a two way feedback process at 
the heart of our client service commitment. ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with Those Charged with 
Governance’ and ISA 265 (UK) ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged 
With Governance And Management’ specifically require us to communicate a number of points with 
you.

Relevant points that need to be communicated with you at each stage of the audit are outlined below.

Form, timing and content of our communications

We will present the following reports:

• Audit Strategy Memorandum;

• Audit Completion Report; and

• Auditor’s Annual Report

These documents will be discussed with management prior to being presented to yourselves and 
their comments will be incorporated as appropriate.

Key communication points at the planning stage as included in this Audit 
Strategy Memorandum

• Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements;

• The planned scope and timing of the audit;

• Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement;

• Our commitment to independence;

• Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors;

• Materiality and misstatements; and

• Fees for audit and other services.

Key communication points at the completion stage to be included in our 
Audit Completion Report

• Significant deficiencies in internal control;

• Significant findings from the audit;

• Significant matters discussed with management;

• Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of 
management judgement;

• Summary of misstatements;

• Management representation letter;

• Our proposed draft audit report; and

• Independence.

28

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 50



29

Appendix: Key communication points

ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs 
(UK) specifically require us to communicate the following:

Required communication Where addressed

Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit and those of management and those 

charged with governance.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

The planned scope and timing of the audit including any limitations, specifically including with 

respect to significant risks.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

With respect to misstatements:

• uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion;

• the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods;

• a request that any uncorrected misstatement is corrected; and

• in writing, corrected misstatements that are significant.

Audit Completion Report

With respect to fraud communications:

• enquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee to determine whether they have a knowledge 

of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity;

• any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that fraud may 

exist; and

• a discussion of any other matters related to fraud.

Audit Completion Report and discussion at Audit and Governance Committee

Audit planning and clearance meetings

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 51



30

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties including, 

when applicable:

• non-disclosure by management;

• inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions;

• disagreement over disclosures;

• non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

• difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity.

Audit Completion Report

Significant findings from the audit including:

• our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting 

policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;

• significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

• significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management or were 

the subject of correspondence with management;

• written representations that we are seeking;

• expected modifications to the audit report; and

• other matters, if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process or otherwise 

identified in the course of the audit that we believe will be relevant to the Audit and Governance 

Committee in the context of fulfilling their responsibilities.

Audit Completion Report

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Completion Report

Where relevant, any issues identified with respect to authority to obtain external confirmations or 

inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit Completion Report

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 52



31

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Audit findings regarding non-compliance with laws and regulations where the non-compliance is 

material and believed to be intentional (subject to compliance with legislation on tipping off) and 

enquiry of the Audit and Governance Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with 

laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the Audit 

and Governance Committee may be aware of.

Audit Completion Report and Audit and Governance Committee meetings

With respect to going concern, events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the 

entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, including:

• whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty;

• whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements; and

• the adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements.

Audit Completion Report

Reporting on the valuation methods applied to the various items in the annual financial statements 

including any impact of changes of such methods

Audit Completion Report 

Indication of whether all requested explanations and documents were provided by the entity Audit Completion Report 

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 53



Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 

and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 

expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 

Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

Mazars LLP
One St Peter’s Square
Manchester
M2 3DE

Karen Murray
Karen.Murray@mazars.co.uk

Tel: +44 (0)161 238 9248 

Mobile: +44 (0)7721 234 043 

P
age 54

mailto:Karen.Murray@mazars.co.uk


Page 1 of 7 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 

 

Date of Meeting 10th March 2022 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Finance & 
Corporate 

Report Author Shaun Knowles 

 Public/Private Document Public 

 

2021-22 AGC Internal Audit Q3 Report2 
 

Executive Summary 
1.01 This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during Q3 of 

financial year 2021/22. 
 

1.02 To the end of Q3, 78% of the agreed Audit Plan ahead of the agreed plan 
(73%) 
 

1.03 A substantial or adequate assurance opinion was given for all audits issued 
during the period. 
 

1.04 Although Q3 had no ‘limited assurance’ audits issued as final reports, three 
have been issued during Q4.  
 The Special Guardianship Orders Audit Report highlighted some 

procedural concerns with regard to documented processes and financial 
reviews. The findings have been discussed with the Director of Children’s 
Services and a number of recommendations agreed. 

 The Allis Audit Report in Adult Care highlighted concerns over training and 
the recording of information. The have been discussed with the Director of 
Adult Care and a number of recommendations agreed. 

 The Payroll audit has identified a number of payroll transactions that had 
not been processed correctly. These have been discussed with the Payroll 
team and relevant action is being taken to rectify. 
 

1.05 A full update of these will be given as part of the Q4 report and key personnel 
from each related service invited to attend the Audit & Governance 
Committee meeting in June 2022. 
 

1.06 The Audit Plan is designed to be fluid and amendments relevant are made to 
reflect changes to risk exposure within RBC. Any changes will be reported to 
the Audit Committee accordingly.  
No changes were made during Q3. 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 7 

Recommendation 
2.01 That the report be reviewed and noted. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

3.01 This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee to scrutinise 
Internal Audit coverage during the third quarter of financial year 2021/22. 
  

3.02 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Council’s 
Chief Audit Executive (Head of Audit and Risk) to regularly report on 
emerging issues in respect of the whole range of areas to be covered in the 
annual report. 
 

3.03 In order to meet this requirement, the Committee receives regular reports on 
Internal Audit’s performance to support the effectiveness of the internal audit 
process. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 
4.00 Risk Based Audit Approach 
4.01 Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal 

control environment, risk management and governance processes for the 
Council as a whole.  
 

4.02 A risk based approach is taken during each audit, incorporating operational 
and management controls, as well as any wider business risks. This allows an 
opinion to be expressed both on risk identification and level of exposure, as 
well as the adequacy of systems in place to manage those risks. 
 

4.03 Each Internal Audit report gives a clear audit assurance opinion on the 
effectiveness of risk management in the area under review. These assurance 
opinion ratings are detailed below: 

 Assurance 
Opinion Explanation 

 Limited Key risks are not managed effectively. The control systems in 
operation are in need of significant improvement. 

 Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. 
Opportunities exist to improve the management of some risks. 

 Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks 
effectively. 

 
5.00 Planned Work Completed During Quarter Three 
5.01 Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed during 

Q3. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with a specific 
focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority. 
 

6.00 Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow-Up Audits 
6.01 No audit reports were issued with ‘Limited’ assurance during the third quarter.  

 
6.02 All ‘Limited’ Assurance audit reports are discussed at a Joint Leadership 

Team meeting, with the relevant Service Director invited to give an update on 
key findings and related recommendations. 

Page 56



Page 3 of 7 

 
6.04 Internal Audit monitor and challenge progress against recommendations and 

will ensure that members are updated as appropriate. 
 

7.00 Draft Reports 
7.01 Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 

responses to recommendations are received within an agreed timescale.  
Internal Audit follows an agreed escalation process with management so as to 
ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a timely manner.  
No draft reports had responses outstanding beyond the agreed period. 
 

8.00 Audit Recommendations 
8.01 The Internal Audit follow up process, to provide assurance that agreed 

recommendations have been implemented on a timely basis. 
 

8.02 ‘Limited Assurance’ reports are highlighted and are open to specific 
discussion and challenge by Members with relevant Senior Officers.  
 

8.03 Internal Audit will perform a formal follow up audit within an agreed timescale, 
with outcomes of each review reported back to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 
 

8.04 In terms of any ‘Adequate’ or ‘Substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions are scheduled to be followed up by Internal Audit to 
confirm completion to the agreed due dates.  
 

8.05 Any delays in implementation, along with related reasons, are reported to the 
Committee for further consideration. Where appropriate, a revised completion 
date for outstanding actions is agreed and monitored. 
 

9.00 Unplanned work 
9.01 COVID-19 Payments to Support Families on Free School Meals 
 Internal audit resource continued to be given to support the supply of food 

vouchers during school holidays to families with children who were entitled to 
free school meals. 
 

10.00 Internal Audit Performance Measures 
10.01 The table below shows actual performance as at 31 December 21 against 

Internal Audit targets for the first quarter, including the actuals for 2020/21. 
 

Performance Indicator 
Actual 
Year 
20/21 

Target 
Q3 

21/22 

Actual 
Q3 

21/22 
 Economy 1. Cost per Audit Day 

(excluding overheads) £243 £240  £ 216  

 Efficiency 2. Chargeable days per auditor 
(days) 203 180 189 

 
Efficiency 

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed 
(96% for full year) 

64% 73% 78% 

 
Effectiveness 

4. Percentage of draft audit 
reports issued within 14 days of 
completion of the audit 

100% 98% 100% 

Page 57



Page 4 of 7 

 Effectiveness 5. Percentage of 
recommendations accepted 100% 98% 100% 

 
Effectiveness 

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good) 

100% 98% 100% 
 

10.02 All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period.  
As at 31 December 2021, 78% of the plan had been completed. 
 

11.00 Client Surveys 
11.01 2 client surveys were returned in Q3. All responses were recorded as “very 

good”. 
 

12.00 Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit 
12.01 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of organisations 

in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In  Q3, this has generated income of £900 and has 
included:  
 3 audits of School Fund Accounts for schools under Local Authority control 

 
12.02 Within the limitations of existing resources, Internal Audit continues to pursue 

opportunities to generate external income. 
 

13.00 Internal Audit Response to challenges arising from COVID-19 
13.01 In response to the challenges the Council continued to face in respect to 

Covid-19, Internal Audit (Audit, Risk, Insurance and Counter Fraud) has both 
supported the Council, wherever needed, and adapted their working practices 
to include a mixture of both working in the office and at home. 
 

13.02 Internal Audit support given includes: 
 Supporting queries relating to the supply of vouchers for the most 

financially challenged families in the Borough  
 Verification of returns being made to Central Government 

 
13.03 Time has been included in the 2021/22 internal plan to allow for internal audit 

support in relation to the pandemic. This mainly relates to verification around 
grants and related returns to Central Government. The need for any further 
involvement is continually reviewed and should it adversely impact the 
completion of the 2021/22 plan, then the Head of Internal Audit will review the 
impact with both the Audit and Governance Committee and the Chief Finance 
Officer. 
 

13.04 The Head of Internal Audit will continue to ensure that any involvement in 
operational procedures will not impair Internal Audit’s professional 
independence in relation to any subsequent audit work focused on those 
processes or related controls. 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
14.01 Not applicable. 

 

Page 58



Page 5 of 7 

Risk and Policy Implications 
15.01 Having effective internal controls, coupled with independent and objective 

reviews by an Audit and Governance Committee, can help reduce the risks of 
serious fraud, misconduct, or misrepresentation of the authority’s financial 
position.  
 

15.02 An effective Audit and Governance Committee can also help to reinforce the 
importance and independence of internal and external audit and any other 
similar review process, thereby increasing public confidence in the objectivity 
and fairness of financial and other reporting. 
 

Consultation 
16.01 The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 

consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area. 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
None  
  

For Further Information Contact: Shaun Knowles 
01706 925497 
shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 59

mailto:shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix A 
Planned audits completed in quarter three

Page 6 of 7 

Recommendation 
priorities Date of  

Audit Directorate Service Audit Area Scope of Audit Assurance 
Opinion H M L 

02-Nov-21 Neighbourhoods ICT Cyber Security 

Evaluate the effectiveness of 
processes and controls over IT 
security including follow up of the 
2019/20 audit recommendations.  

A 2 2 0 

23-Nov-21 Economy Economy Disposal of 
Land 

Disposal of Land (Woodbine Street 
East) A 0 3 0 

15-Oct-21 Children's 
Services  

Children's 
Social 
Care 

Significant 
increase in 
spend 

To be proactive and analyse data 
from the financial system to monitor 
patterns in purchase card spend 
which may indicate spend that is 
significantly greater than what would 
be expected. 

S 0 2 0 

22-Oct-21 Children's 
Services  

Children's 
Social 
Care 

Supporting 
People 
Programme  
(Troubled 
Families) 

Evaluate processes and controls to 
ensure they are effective and 
support compliance with the GM 
Troubled Family Framework and 
Troubled Family Outcome Plan 

S 0 0 0 

13-Dec-21 Children's 
Services  Schools 

Little Heaton 
Primary School 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

A 1 4 8 

22-Nov-22 Children's 
Services  Schools 

Sandbrook 
Primary School 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

A 0 7 5 

18-Nov-21 Children's 
Services  Schools 

Brownhill 
Special School 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

A 0 6 5 

08-Oct-21 Children's 
Services  Schools Whittaker Moss 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

A 0 1 8 

P
age 60



Appendix A 
Planned audits completed in quarter three

Page 7 of 7 

Recommendation 
priorities Date of  

Audit Directorate Service Audit Area Scope of Audit Assurance 
Opinion H M L 

09-Dec-21 Children's 
Services  Schools 

Castleton 
Primary School 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

S 0 3 3 

17-Nov-21 Children's 
Services  Schools Woodland 

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

S 0 3 2 

03-Dec-21 Children's 
Services  Schools Smithybridge  

To focus upon the financial systems 
and governance arrangements in 
place. 

S 0 1 5 

P
age 61



Report to Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 10th March 2022 
Portfolio  Cabinet Member for  

Finance & Corporate   
Report Author Samantha Smith  

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 
 

Accounting Policies 2021/22 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1.1 To inform Audit and Governance Committee that there are no changes to 

accounting policies for the 2021/22 accounts. 
 

Recommendations 
 
2.1 Audit and Governance committee to note:- 
 

 That there are no changes in the accounting policies for the 2021/22 
accounts. 

 The use of the Modern Equivalent Asset approach to value our school 
buildings from 2021/22 as detailed in section 4.3 

 The update on the proposed implementation of IFRS16 as detailed in 
section 4.4. 

 
Reasons for Recommendations 

 
3.1 Any changes to the Council’s accounting policies must be agreed by Audit 

and Governance Committee as per the Council’s financial regulations. This 
report confirms there are no changes for 2021/22. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 Accounting Policies 
 

The Council’s accounting policies are the specific principles, conventions, rules 
and practices that are applied in preparing and presenting the annual accounts. 
These accounting policies have to be disclosed as a note to the annual 
accounts.  
 

4.2 There are no changes required to the accounting policies for 2021/22. 
 
4.3 Use of Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) valuation method for school 

buildings 
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



4.3.1 Under the Council’s accounting policies, assets for which there is no market 
based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset are 
valued using their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) as a proxy for fair value.  

 
4.3.2 For the valuation of the Councils school buildings the DRC value has 

traditionally been calculated based on the cost of replacing the asset in its 
current form.   

 
4.3.3 From 2021/22 the Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) approach to our valuation 

of school buildings will be applied. This method will value schools based on the 
depreciated cost of the value of the modern equivalent asset that would be 
needed to deliver the same service (taking into account pupil numbers). 

 
4.3.4 This approach has been discussed and agreed with external audit as it is 

deemed to be a more accurate estimate of the cost of replacing our school 
assets if we are ever required to do so.  

 
4.3.5 This does not represent a change in accounting policy as we will still be applying 

the DRC method, however we will be applying a different calculation method. 
 
4.3.6 An initial estimate shows that applying this method is expected to reduce the 

net book value (NBV) by circa £9m (2.5% of the current NBV). There are no 
budgetary issues caused as a result of this change. 

 
4.4 IFRS16 (Leases) 
 
4.4.1 The 2022/23 code is expected to introduce a change to accounting policies for 

leases, by adopting IFRS16 from the 1st of April 2022. 
 
4.4.2 This change will not require a change in accounting policies for 2021/22, but 

will require a disclosure in the accounts identifying the impact of adopting 
IFRS16 will have on the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 

 
4.4.3 The impact of adopting IFRS16 is that certain leased assets will need to be 

brought on balance sheet along with a financial liability for the remaining lease 
payments due. The annual lease payments for these assets which are currently 
fully charged to service revenue budgets will be split into interest payments and 
payments against the financial liability for that asset. 

 
4.4.4 Finance service are currently gathering the information required to understand 

the impact for our Statement of accounts. No budgetary issues are expected as 
a result of this change. 

 
4.4.5 CIPFA are currently consulting on delaying the implementation of IFRS16 for 

Local Authorities back a further year (to 1st of April 2023), which will delay the 
impact of any changes by a further year. The outcome of this consultation 
should be known by the end of March 2022. 

 
 
 

Page 63



4.5 Alternatives Considered 
 

The Council’s Accounting Policies should be agreed annually by the Audit and 
Governance Committee, to keep Members informed and ensure the Statement 
of Accounts reflect the requirements of the CIPFA Code. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising as a result of this report.  
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 
6.1 There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 

report. 
 

Consultation 
 
7.1 The contents of this report has been consulted on with our external auditors. 
 
 
 

Background Papers: For further information about this report or access to 
background papers please contact Gareth Davies (Finance Manager - 

Corporate) Finance Services, Floor 2, Number 1 Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 9DJ.  Tel – 01706 924888. 

Document Place of Inspection 

  
 

Page 64



Page 1 of 3 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 

 

Date of Meeting 10th March 2022 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Resources 

Report Author Louise Steel 

 
Public/Private 
Document Public 

 

Counter Fraud Team Quarter Three Report 2021/22 
 

Executive Summary 

1.1 This report summarises the work of the Counter Fraud Team during the third 
quarter of 2021/22. 

1.2 The Counter Fraud Team have received 198 referrals during the period and 
have achieved £63,485 in overpayments and savings. 

1.3 The Counter Fraud Team have conducted over 30 Additional Restriction 
Business Grant checks for The Economic Affairs Team 

1.4 16 reports have been closed within the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), 300 
matches have been checked within these reports  

1.5 Replies have been made to over 166 Data Protection Requests (email and 
Partnership Enforcement Team requests) 

1.6 The Counter Fraud Team conducted four interviews under caution throughout 
quarter three  

Recommendation 

2. That the report be reviewed and noted. 
Reason for Recommendation 

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee to scrutinise 
Counter Fraud coverage during the third quarter of 2021/22. 

Key Points for Consideration 

4. Performance 
4.1 A total of 198 fraud referrals were received in the third quarter of this 

financial year, compared to 168 from the same period in 2020/21.  
The main sources of these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative 
(NFI), the Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information and 
RBC employees. 
A significant number of these do not progress to formal investigation by the 
team as they are either passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent 

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



Page 2 of 3 

malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough information to progress 
the matter. 

4.2 
 
 
 
4.3  

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £63,485 in overpayments and savings 
throughout quarter three, compared to £30,395 the previous year.  
(N.B. the onset of the Pandemic during last year meant that the Counter 
Fraud Team supported the distribution of the Small Business and Retail, 
Hospitality and Leisure Grants). 
The Counter Fraud Team conducted four interviews under caution 
throughout quarter three   

5 Covid-19 Fraud 
5.1 During quarter three, The Counter Fraud Team conducted business and 

bank fraud pre-payment checks for businesses that applied for an 
Additional Restriction Grant through the Economic Affairs Team.  
The checks have included using a tool called Spotlight and a tool provided 
by the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to check the validity of bank details 
provided.  
The Counter Fraud Team have conducted over 30 business checks during 
quarter three. 

5.2 The Counter Fraud Team have also continued to deal with fraud work 
related to COVID-19, including allegations of fraud arising from the 
Pandemic.  
90 allegations of COVID-19 business grant fraud have been received, 56 
remain open and under investigation. Over 80 allegations of Test and Trace 
Support Payment Fraud are currently being investigated 

6 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
6.1 The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 

have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.   
The Team will receive the 2021 NFI Single Person Discount, Council Tax 
matches in January 2022 and checks will commence in quarter four.  

6.2 The Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Matches for 20/21 have been 
received. The Counter Fraud Team have continued to check the various 
reports throughout quarter two   

6.3 They have now checked and closed 16 reports within the 20/21 reports, 
having completed over 300 matches within these reports 

6.4 NFI have also produced four reports in respect to the COVID-19 Business 
Grants: The Discretionary Grants, Small Business Grants and Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Grants.  
The Counter Fraud Team have now closed two of these reports, with 
checks consisting of 33 matches. Two reports remain open and the Counter 
Fraud Team are currently checking matches within these reports.  

7 Partnership Enforcement Team (PET) 
7.1 The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 

provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.   

Page 66



Page 3 of 3 

Replies have been made to 96 Data Protection Requests from October 
2021 to December 2021, not including the work that is completed in the 
PET. 

7.2 Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.   
A combination of intelligence, skills and powers from the different 
enforcement agencies are used to prevent and detect fraud within the 
Borough.  
Currently the following cross-agency teams attend the weekly meeting: 
GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – 
Children’s Services; Community Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; 
Fraud; Public Protection; Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – 
Enforcement, Fire Service officials. 

7.3 The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 70 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders.   

7.4 The Counter Fraud Team continue to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.  
 
 
  

Costs and Budget Summary 

13 The Counter Fraud Team achieved £63,485 in overpayments and savings 
throughout quarter three, compared to £30,395 the previous year.  

Risk and Policy Implications 

14 The work of the Counter Fraud Team helps protect the assets and interest 
of both the authority and people of Rochdale through ensuring that relevant 
policies are up to date, and followed, and by also looking to recoup any 
payments made through inappropriate means. 

Consultation 

15 The recommendations and actions arising from the work of the Counter 
Fraud Team are agreed followed through to an appropriate conclusion. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
None N/A 
  

For Further Information Contact: Louise Steel 
01706 926083 
louise.steel@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 67

mailto:louise.steel@rochdale.gov.uk


Page 1 of 25 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee 

 

Date of Meeting 10 March 2022 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Finance & 
Corporate 

Report Author Shaun Knowles 

 Public/Private 
Document Public 

 

Internal Audit Annual Plan Report 2022/23 
 

Executive Summary 

1.01 This report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23, and has been 
created in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter. 

1.02 The plan has been developed through close liaison with both the Leadership 
Team and Senior Management to identify and evaluate key areas of risk.  

1.03 The plan has allowed for appropriate coverage of Council services so as to 
ensure that an independent opinion can be given on the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes at the end of the financial 
year.  

1.04 The plan is designed to be fluid and provides for flexibility to allow for changes 
to current identified key risks, and new and emerging areas of risk, to be 
evaluated during the course of the year. 

1.05 This report therefore seeks to inform Audit and Governance Committee, in the 
context of the Members being charged with the overall responsibility for 
governance, of the proposed work programme of Internal Audit to facilitate 
approval of the Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23. 

Recommendation 

2.01 The Audit and Governance Committee approve the Internal Audit Plan for 
2022/23. 

Reason for Recommendation 

3.01 This report sets out the work programme for Internal Audit for 2022/23.  
3.02 Internal Audit is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as an 

independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish 
its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance 
processes.  

Page 68

Agenda Item 11



Page 2 of 25 

3.03 The focus of Internal Audit work includes the financial systems, operational and 
management controls and also includes risk management and corporate 
governance as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective 
use of resources. 

  

Key Points for Consideration 

4.01 The objectives of RBC Internal Audit, which inform the development of the 
annual audit plan, are to: 

 Deliver an annual Internal Audit opinion and report that can be used by the 
Authority to inform its Annual Governance Statement; 

 Independently review and appraise systems of control throughout the 
Council; 

 Ascertain the extent of compliance with procedures, policies, regulations 
and legislation; 

 Provide reassurance to management that their agreed policies are being 
carried out effectively; 

 Facilitate good practice in managing risks; 

 Provide proactive advice and input into any significant system or procedural 
developments; 

 Recommend improvements in control, performance and productivity in 
achieving corporate objectives; 

 Review and challenge the value for money processes and systems within 
the Council; 

 Work in partnership with the external auditors; 

 Identify fraud as a consequence of its reviews and deter crime; and 

 Lead and promote the counter fraud culture within the Authority. 
4.02 The annual audit plan is determined from a number of sources: 

 The corporate and service based risk registers, aligned with the corporate 
objectives, to identify areas of high strategic and operational risk; 

 Discussions with members of the Leadership Team; 

 Actions and developments identified in the Annual Governance Statement; 

 Liaising with Directors and Service Management Teams to advise on 
service developments and providing opinions on proposed audit coverage 
and audit scheduling; 

 Issues highlighted by the Audit and Governance Committee; 

 Changes and developments arising from corporate savings initiatives; 

 The external auditor, advising on national developments and to avoid 
duplication with their own audit plan for the Authority; 

 Issues identified from external assessments undertaken on Council 
services; 

 External reports highlighting key sector risks; 
Page 69



Page 3 of 25 

 External assurances required by agreed contractual or funding 
arrangements or legislative requirements; and 

 Audit resource availability. 
4.03 Provision exists within the audit plan for unplanned work such as special 

investigations involving suspected fraud and irregularity and the provision of ad 
hoc advice.  

4.04 A risk based approach to individual audit reviews is well developed. This 
embraces operational and management controls and the wider business risk, 
as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. It allows an opinion to be expressed 
on risk identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage and control those risks. 

4.05 Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 
The annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 has been developed in conjunction 
with each Director and has been reviewed and agreed with the Chief Finance 
Officer as s151 Officer. A detailed breakdown of the Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 
is included in Appendix A. 

4.06 Audit coverage is prioritised and categorised between “core” work and 
“assurance” work.  

 Core work relates to those areas, normally of higher risk, where Internal 
Audit review or support will add greatest value to the organisation. The 
projects within this category will be given the highest priority in the event of 
competing demands for Internal Audit involvement.  

 Assurance work complements the work from the core plan and ensures an 
adequate level of Internal Audit review each year within each Service.  

Both core and assurance work form key elements of the Audit Plan to allow a 
formal audit opinion to be formed at the end of each year. 

4.07 The assessment of risk for each audit within the Plan takes account of many 
factors including materiality, the risk of reputational damage, potential fraud 
risk, third party sensitivity, the extent to which the service area is governed by 
legislation or external regulation, results of previous audits or external 
inspections, the extent of recent change within processes and systems and the 
degree of manual intervention within processes. Priority within the plan will 
always be given to those audit areas assessed as either high or medium risk in 
this context. 

4.08 Internal Audit will continue to take a lead role, working in conjunction with the 
Monitoring Officer, in promoting and supporting the zero-tolerance approach to 
fraud adopted within the Authority. This will include: 

 Supporting the promotion of and awareness of the Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy (AFACP), including the Whistleblowing Policy; 

 Further development of a pro-active approach to fraud detection which both 
aligns with and adds to the National Fraud Initiative; 

 Supporting the above approach by further developing the use of data mining 
software to highlight further potential areas of risk; 

 Monitoring and reporting on the Authority’s response to various professional 
and sector led guidance and publications on best practice in fraud 
prevention and detection such as Fighting Fraud Locally;   

Page 70



Page 4 of 25 

 Directly supporting the Counter Fraud Team to investigate and prosecute 
any identified fraudulent activity and to ensure an effective exchange of 
relevant information with various enforcement agencies; and 

 Ensuring compliance is being achieved with all key policies and there is 
adequate awareness across the Authority 

4.09 In addition to the above, Internal Audit will continue with the responsibility for 
co-ordinating the National Fraud Initiative. This will assist in providing input into 
future Internal Audit planning processes in relation to any specific issues that 
are highlighted through this exercise. 

4.10 Other Sources of Assurance 
The development of the plan has taken account of other sources of 
assurances, both internal and external to Council activities which sit alongside 
the assurances provided by Internal Audit. This includes not only the process of 
challenge and decision making through the Cabinet and Committee structure, 
forming a core part of the Constitution, but also various forms of self-
assessment such as the annual Director’s Assurance Statement. Reviews of 
key sector risks has also been undertaken. 

4.14 In addition, there are a number of areas of ongoing self-review with reporting 
through to senior managers’ groups and to Members as appropriate, including 
the following: 

 Budget monitoring (revenue and capital); 

 Compliance with risk management strategy; 

 Review and management of major projects; 

 Performance management and service delivery; 

 Absence management; 

 Health and safety; and 

 Equality and diversity. 
4.15 RBC Internal Audit work closely with the Internal Audit services based within 

Stockport BC, Trafford BC and Tameside BC to audit procurement areas within 
the scope covered by the STAR Procurement hub. Any such shared audits 
therefore provide assurance for all 4 authorities and any audit reports issued 
are shared with each Authority and reported through to their respective Audit 
Committees.  

Page 71



Page 5 of 25 

4.16 Further assurance is gained from other independent reviews undertaken by 
both external audit (Mazars) and other external bodies such as Ofsted, Care 
Quality Commission, HM Customs, Food Standards Agency, Information 
Commissioners Office etc. together with independent peer reviews undertaken 
within Children’s Services and Adult Care to evaluate processes and practices 
against best practice standards. 

4.17 Internal Audit Performance Indicators 
The following performance indicators have been set in order to provide a 
measure of the performance of the Internal Audit team during each year. 

 Performance Indicator Target 
2020/21 

Estimate 
2020/21 

Target 
2021/22 

 Economy 1. Cost per Audit Day 
(excluding overheads)    

 Efficiency 2. Productive days per auditor 
(days)    

 
Efficiency 

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed 
(96% for full year) 

96% 96% 96% 

 

Effectiveness 

4. Percentage of draft audit 
reports issued within 14 
days of completion of the 
audit 

100% 98% 100% 

 Effectiveness 5. Percentage of 
recommendations accepted 100% 98% 100% 

 

Effectiveness 

6. Results of client surveys - % 
of marks in the top two 
categories 
(i.e. very good & good) 

100% 98% 100% 

4.18 The measures have been established is as follows: 
 1. Cost per Audit Day (£) 

This indicator provides a measure of the cost of the Internal Audit function 
by evaluating the total controllable cost of the function (excluding overhead 
cost allocations) in relation to productive days spent directly on audit work.     

 2. Productive days per auditor 
This indicator measures the efficiency of the Internal Audit function by 
calculating the average number of days spent by each member of the team 
on audit work, thus excluding non-chargeable time. 

 3. Percentage of audit plan completed  

Page 72



Page 6 of 25 

This measure provides assurance that an appropriate proportion of the Audit 
Plan has been completed to enable an opinion to be delivered on the overall 
control environment.   

 4. Percentage of draft reports issued within 14 days of completion of the audit 
This indicator measures the efficiency of audit processes to ensure that draft 
reports are produced in a timely manner after the conclusion of the audit 
fieldwork.  

 5. Percentage of audit recommendations accepted 
This indicator provides a measure of the acceptance of client management 
of the findings and recommendations arising from audit work completed 

 6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in the top two categories  
(i.e. very good and good)  
This indicator provides a measure of how client management evaluates the 
service provided by audit staff through the client survey document that 
management is requested to complete at the conclusion of each audit. 

4.19 Internal Audit Structure 
The structure of the Internal Audit team is set out in Appendix B.  
One member of the team has taken up the option of flexible retirement during 
2021/22 and remains unchanged from 2021/22. 
The Head of Internal Audit is reviewing the possibility of recruiting an Internal 
Audit Graduate Apprentice during 2022/23 to support the current structure and 
look towards future succession planning. 
Currently, the Head of Internal Audit considers the resource available remains 
sufficient to be able to fulfil the core objectives of the Internal Audit service, 
specifically to deliver an audit opinion on the overall control environment. 

4.20 Alternatives Considered 
No alternatives have been considered given the statutory responsibilities that 
are being fulfilled through this process 

Costs and Budget Summary 

5.01 There are no cost or budget implications arising from this report 
Risk and Policy Implications 

6.01 The Internal Audit function discharges the statutory responsibilities delegated to 
the Chief Finance Officer through Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972 and the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 to undertake an 
effective internal audit in accordance with public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance.  

6.02 The Internal Audit Plan forms the basis on which an independent opinion on the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes can be 
provided at each year end for inclusion within the Annual Governance 
Statement. The main risk of not accepting the plan is that this opinion cannot be 
delivered to confirm and support the adequacy of the overall governance 
framework. 

Page 73



Page 7 of 25 

Consultation 

7.01 An extensive process of consultation is undertaken in order to develop this 
Internal Audit Plan, as set out within paragraph 4.3, in order to ensure that all 
key areas of risk are considered. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
None  
  

For Further Information Contact: Shaun Knowles 
01706 925497 
shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 74

mailto:shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 8 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

1.00 Corporate Corporate          60.00 

1.01 Corporate Corporate Register of 
Interests 

To gain assurance regarding 
the level of compliance with 
the Officers' Code of Conduct 
as it relates to the declaring 
and registration of staff register 
of interests. 

General lack of 
transparency and 
integrity and failure 
to demonstrate 
alignment with the 
Nolan Principles. 

M Assurance 15.00 

1.02 Corporate Corporate 

Local Authority 
Controlled 
Companies 
(LACC) 

To establish the LACC's and/or 
other 'Significant Partnerships 
in place and to ensure that 
appropriate governance 
arrangements exist within them 
and evidence of this is made 
known to RBC. 

Lack of effective 
governance 
arrangements 
could lead to 
failure of the 
organisation 
and/or inability to 
deliver expected 
outcomes. 

M Assurance 25.00 

1.03 Corporate Corporate Recruitment & 
Retention 

To evaluate RBC's recruitment 
and retention arrangements 
both in terms of compliance 
with existing arrangements and 
also ensuring that existing 
arrangements are fit for 
purpose going forward. 

Inadequate 
arrangements may 
result in employing 
the wrong people 
and/or failure to 
attract and retain 
the best people. 

M Assurance 20.00 

P
age 75



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 9 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

2.00 Adult Care Adult Care 3         50.00 

2.01 Adult Care Adult Care Provider Portal 
Payments 

Evaluate the processes and 
controls within the payment 
system for providers, ensuring 
the integrity of data input by 
the providers which supports 
future payments to them. 

Inaccurate data 
may lead to 
financial loss 

M Assurance 15.00 

2.02 Adult Care Adult Care 
Quality 
Assurance 
Framework 

Evaluate the effectiveness of 
the process focusing on the 
management of actions/ 
outcomes and whether these 
are leading to improvements in 
performance. 

Actions are not 
managed 
effectively 
resulting in no 
positive impact on 
performance 

M Assurance 15.00 

2.03 Adult Care Adult Care 
High Value 
Placement 
Process 

Evaluate processes and 
controls supporting high value 
placements to ensure they are 
effective towards delivering 
value for money and align with 
agreed procedures. 

Ineffective 
governance may 
lead to additional 
cost to the 
Council. 

M Assurance 20.00 

P
age 76



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 10 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

3.00 Children's 
Services 

Children's 
Social Care 3         40.00 

3.01 Children's 
Services 

Children's 
Social Care 

Post 16 
Supported 
Accommodation  

Evaluate processes and 
controls supporting the 
transition into post 16 
supported accommodation to 
ensure the quality of care 
remains appropriate. 

Inappropriate 
decisions may 
impair the quality 
of care provision, 
especially where 
children move into 
unregulated 
settings 

H Assurance 10.00 

3.02 Children's 
Services 

Children's 
Social Care 

Section 17 
monies 

To provide assurance that 
section 17 monies are used 
effectively  

Payments made 
are not in line with 
legislation. 
Vulnerable 
children are not 
supported. 

M Assurance 15.00 

3.02 Children's 
Services 

Children's 
Social Care 

Public Law 
Outline 

To review and evaluate the 
decision making process 
surrounding care proceedings 
with a view to establishing 
whether decisions are made in 
a timely manner. 

Increased risk of 
children 
experiencing 
neglect. 

H Assurance 15.00 

P
age 77



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 11 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

4.00 Children's 
Services Early Help 4         75.00 

4.01 Children's 
Services Early Help School 

Admissions 

To review and evaluate the 
arrangements for in year 
transfers from one school to 
another.  

Non-compliance 
with legislation and 
criteria not being 
applied 
consistently. 

M Assurance 20.00 

4.02 Children's 
Services Early Help 

Home to 
School 
Transport 
(SEN) 

To review the management 
and contractual arrangements 
over SEN transport to ensure 
outcomes for service users are 
achieved and risks are 
properly mitigated. 

Outcomes for 
service users are 
not achieved. 

M Assurance 15.00 

4.02 Children's 
Services Early Help Virtual Schools 

To provide assurance that 
spend is in line with DfE 
requirements. 

Non-compliance 
with DfE 
requirements. 

M Assurance 20.00 

4.03 Children's 
Services Early Help Elective Home 

Education 

A review of operational 
procedures to ensure that 
enquiries, about the education 
being provided to children at 
home, are timely and effective. 

Legal 
requirements are 
not met and the 
wellbeing of the 
children impacted 
upon. 

M Assurance 20.00 

5.00 Children's 
Services Schools 15 

To focus upon the financial 
systems and governance 
arrangements in place 

Appropriate fin. 
and op. controls 
are not maintained 
over school funds. 

    90.00 

P
age 78



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 12 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

6.00 Economy Economy 3         55.00 

6.01 Economy Economy 
Commercialisation 
and income 
generation  

To evaluate the governance 
and other related 
arrangements in place for RBC 
to maximise opportunity and 
minimise risk from 
commercialisation and income 
generation. 

Not maximising 
returns and/or 
possible loss on 
investment. 

H Assurance 20.00 

6.02 Economy Economy Acquisitions 

To evaluate whether 
acquisitions of land and 
property are in line with the 
Constitution and any other 
relevant regulations/guidelines 
e.g. RBC's Asset Strategy. 

General financial 
and reputational 
risk associated 
with making 
inappropriate 
acquisitions. 

H Assurance 20.00 

6.03 Economy Economy Planning Code 
of Conduct 

To evaluate compliance with 
the Planning Code of Conduct 
and direct reporting of that to 
Audit and Governance 
Committee as specified in Part 
5D of the Constitution. 

General lack of 
transparency and 
integrity and a 
failure to avoid 
allegations of 
malpractice 
leading to 
ultimately not 
being able to 
demonstrate 
alignment with the 
Nolan Principles. 

H Assurance 15.00 

P
age 79



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 13 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

7.00 Neighbourhoods ICC 5         90.00 

7.01 Neighbourhoods 
Information, 
Customers & 
Communities 

Comms - VfM 
To review progress against the 
updated Communications Plan 
/ Strategy 

Not being able to 
keep the 
community 
informed in an 
accessible and 
practical way 

M Assurance 15.00 

7.02 Neighbourhoods 
Information, 
Customers & 
Communities 

Community 
Safety 

To ensure that RBC is 
delivering on any statutory 
and/or other responsibilities it 
has in respect of community 
safety both within the Council 
and also wider as part of any 
multi-agency approach. 

Not being able to 
adequately 
respond to the 
very public-facing 
challenges such 
as reduction of 
crime, disorder 
and anti-social 
behaviour. 

H Assurance 20.00 

7.03 Neighbourhoods 
Information, 
Customers & 
Communities 

Domestic 
Abuse 

To evaluate the efficiency and 
effectiveness of RBC's 
arrangements in implementing 
its Domestic Abuse Strategy. 

Inadequate 
arrangements 
leading to 
insufficient 
progress in 
implementing the 
Strategy and the 
effect this would 
have on vulnerable 
people. 

H Assurance 20.00 

P
age 80



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 14 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

7.04 Neighbourhoods 
Information, 
Customers & 
Communities 

Covid 
Recovery 

To provide advice, support and 
other relevant audit related 
activities where appropriate in 
respect of RBC's and the 
Borough's recovery from the 
Covid-19 pandemic. 

Not being able to 
recover from the 
effects of the 
pandemic in as 
complete and 
timely a manner as 
should be the 
case. 

H Assurance 20.00 

7.05 Neighbourhoods 
Information, 
Customers & 
Communities 

IT -Disaster 
Recovery 

To evaluate the recently 
updated ITDR arrangements to 
ensure that IT facilities can be 
recovered completely, 
accurately and timely in the 
event of a significant incident 
happening e.g. cyber-
attack/sudden loss of power, 
etc. 

Inability to deliver 
operational 
services in an 
efficient and 
effective manner if 
IT facilities are not 
available. 

H Assurance 15.00 

8.00 Neighbourhoods Place 4         70.00 

8.01 Neighbourhoods Place 
Disposal of 
property / 
estates 

To evaluate whether disposals 
of land and property are in line 
with the Constitution and any 
other relevant regulations / 
guidelines e.g. RBC's Asset 
Strategy.  Ensuring a focus on 
the cessation of all appropriate 
charges one assets are 
disposed of. 

Risks associated 
with making 
inappropriate 
disposals and/or 
continuing to pay 
certain charges in 
respect of assets 
no longer owned. 

M Assurance 10.00 

P
age 81



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 15 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

8.02 Neighbourhoods Place 

Balfour 
Contract 
brought in 
house 

To ensure that highways 
services brought back in-house 
are operating efficiently and 
effectively. 

Risks associated 
with bringing a 
service back in-
house and non-
delivery of 
expected 
outcomes. 

H Assurance 20.00 

8.03 Neighbourhoods Place 
RBH 
Homelessness 
- Travellers 

To ensure that homelessness 
services brought back in-house 
are operating efficiently and 
effectively. 

Risks associated 
with bringing a 
service back in-
house and for it 
not to deliver the 
expected 
outcomes. 

H Assurance 20.00 

8.04 Neighbourhoods Place 
RBH 
Homelessness 
- Hostels 

To ensure that homelessness 
services brought back in-house 
are operating efficiently and 
effectively. 

Risks associated 
with bringing a 
service back in-
house and for it 
not to deliver the 
expected 
outcomes. 

H Assurance 20.00 

P
age 82



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 16 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

9.00 Public Health Public Health 4         70.00 

9.01 Public Health Public Health 

Contain 
Outbreak 
Management 
Funding 
(COMF) 

To confirm that expenditure is 
in line with terms and 
conditions. 

Inappropriate 
expenditure which 
may lead to 
funding clawback. 

M Assurance 20.00 

9.02 Public Health Public Health Drug & Alcohol 

A review of the management 
and contract monitoring 
arrangements over the Drug & 
Alcohol contract  

Poor performance 
is not identified 
and action taken to 
address 

M Assurance 15.00 

9.03 Public Health Public Health Community 
Health 

A review of the management 
and contract monitoring 
arrangements over the 
Community Health contract  

Poor performance 
is not identified 
and action taken to 
address 

M Assurance 20.00 

9.04 Public Health Public Health 
Voluntary 
Sector- Action 
Together  

A review of the management 
and contract monitoring 
arrangements over the 
Voluntary Sector - Action 
Together contract  

Poor performance 
is not identified 
and action taken to 
address 

M Assurance 15.00 

P
age 83



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 17 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

10.00 Resources Finance 5         65.00 

10.01 Resources Finance Contracts 

Evaluate arrangements in 
place in respect of Town 
Centre Regeneration Schemes 
to ensure that schemes comply 
with all necessary regulations 
and that expected outcomes 
from them are delivered. 

Non-compliance 
with regulations 
and the risk of 
outcomes not 
being maximised. 

M Core 20.00 

10.02 Resources Finance Procurements 

To evaluate procurement 
arrangements with a view to 
ensuring that the risk of off-
contract spend is duly 
minimised. 

Off-contract spend 
could lead to 
higher expenditure 
than is necessary. 

M Core 20.00 

10.03 Resources Finance Civica 

To ensure that the main central 
systems and processes 
associated with operating the 
Civica system operate 
efficiently and effectively. 

Financial and 
reputational risks 
of a key system 
not operating in 
the manner 
expected. 

M Assurance 25.00 

10.04 Resources Finance Contract 
extensions 

To ensure that sound 
governance arrangements are 
in place regarding contract 
extensions and that ultimately 
the decision to extend 
represents best value. 

Lack of 
transparency and 
financial risk if 
contract extension 
arrangements are 
not adequate. 

M Assurance 25.00 

P
age 84



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 18 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

10.05 Resources Finance Contract Audit 

To ensure that contracts 
entered into are finalised in 
accordance with pertaining 
regulations and/or other good 
practice; furthermore that 
appropriate arrangements are 
in place for any monetary 
retentions that may apply. 

Lack of 
transparency and 
financial risk if 
contracts are not 
finalised 
appropriately. 

M Assurance 25.00 

11.00 Resources Governance 1         20.00 

11.01 Resources Governance 
Elections & 
Election 
expenditure 

To evaluate both the general 
and the financial arrangements 
that should be in place to 
ensure the   provision of a 
Local Authority electoral 
service. 

Possible non-
compliance with 
statutory electoral 
requirements and 
good practice 
financial 
management. 

M Assurance 20.00 

12.00 Resources HR 2         45.00 

12.01 Resources HR Culture 

To review to what extent  
processes (such as 
performance management  
and remuneration), actions and 
tone at the top are in line with 
the values, ethics, risk appetite 
and policies of the  
organisation. 

Poor culture leads 
to disengaged 
workforce and a 
poor work morale / 
environment 

M Assurance 20.00 

P
age 85



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 19 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

12.02 Resources HR Payroll 
Review arrangements for 
identifying and recovering 
overpayments. 

Overpayments 
made are not 
recovered resulting 
in financial loss. 

M Assurance 25.00 

13.00 Resources Legal 1         25.00 

13.01 Resources Legal Central Safety 
Team 

To ensure that sound health 
and safety arrangements are in 
place via the Council being 
able to demonstrate 
compliance with its own 
Central Safety Policy. 

Inadequate health 
and safety 
arrangements 
could lead to 
unnecessary risk 
of injury or worse. 

M Assurance 25.00 

14.00 Resources R&B 2         40.00 

14.01 Resources R&B Artificial 
Intelligence 

To review the introduction of 
Artificial Intelligence into 
working practices and the 
considerations and effect it 
may have on fundamental 
internal controls. 

Risk inadequate 
internal controls 
result in progress 
not being realised 
or exposure to too 
high a level of risk. 

M Assurance 30.00 

14.02 Resources R&B 
Priority 
Account 
Service 

Evaluate the effectiveness of 
processes and controls which 
facilitate the early repayment 
of suppliers in order to 
generate rebates for the 
Council. 

Non-compliance 
with agreed terms 
may result in 
financial benefits 
not being realised 
by the Council. 

M Core  10.00 

P
age 86



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 20 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

15.00 External School Funds 10  Financial audit of private funds 
associated with the school. 

 Appropriate 
financial and 
operational 
controls are not 
maintained over 
school funds. 

    20.00 

16.00 STaR STaR 0 Support for Internal Audit Work 
Relating to STaR       15.00 

17.00 Internal Audit Audit 
Planning           66.00 

17.01 Internal Audit Audit 
Planning 

Audit planning 
and liaison Audit planning and liaison  N/A N/A 34.00 

17.02 Internal Audit Audit 
Planning 

Audit 
Recommendations 

Follow up of audit 
recommendations to ensure 
completed 

 N/A N/A 32.00 

P
age 87



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 21 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

8.00 Governance Governance           128.00 

18.01 Governance Governance 
Coordination 
and support for 
key policies 

Champion roles relating to 
business continuity, health and 
safety and equality. 

Ensuring that 
policies and 
procedures remain 
up to date, effect 
any recent 
statutory / 
regulatory 
changes, and 
remain fit for 
purpose 

M Assurance 16.00 

18.02 Governance Governance 

Support for 
and evaluation 
of Governance 
structure 

Provide assurance on the 
effectiveness of the 
governance structure and input 
and challenge on relevant 
initiatives, including attendance 
and support for Governance 
Board. 

Ineffective decision 
making leading to 
strategic objectives 
not being met. 

M Core 20.00 

18.03 Governance Governance 
Annual 
Governance 
Statement 

Evaluation of the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) 
to ensure it aligns with 
knowledge and understanding 
of structures and processes in 
place. 

Assurance for 
Members  H Core 20.00 

P
age 88



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 22 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

18.04 Governance Governance 
Committee 
support and 
reporting 

Attendance, reporting, training 
and support for Audit and 
Governance Committee and 
responding to issues raised by 
Members 

Members do not 
get adequate 
information and 
support to ensure 
effective 
governance. 

H Core 32.00 

18.05 Governance Governance 
Risk and 
Insurance 
Management 

Support, challenge and 
evaluate the embedding of risk 
management both corporately 
and within all Service areas. 
Management of the Insurance 
function. 

Failure to achieve 
objectives due to 
appropriate 
controls not being 
identified or 
implemented 

M Core 20.00 

18.06 Governance Governance Ethical 
Governance 

Evaluate the effectiveness of 
the processes supporting 
compliance with ethical 
governance principles.  

Inadequate 
processes may 
result in 
challenges to 
processes and 
decisions and 
reputational 
damage 

L Assurance/ 
Compliance 12.00 

18.07 Governance Governance 
General Advice 
/ Support for 
Schools 

General Advice / Support for 
Schools 

Inadequate 
processes may 
result in challenges 
to processes and 
decisions and 
reputational 
damage 

L Assurance/ 
Compliance 8.00 

P
age 89



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 23 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

19.00 Consultancy Consultancy 

Audit resource 
set aside for 
consultancy 
work on key 
projects 

Consultancy on key projects      20.00 

20.00 Unplanned 
Work Fraud Fraud 

Management           

20.01 Fraud Fraud 
Management 

Managing the 
risk of fraud 

Undertake pro-active audit 
testing to identify any areas of 
potential fraud and ensure the 
Council’s overall approach to 
fraud supports the zero-
tolerance culture through 
policy development and 
corporate fraud responses. 
Also support provided to the 
Counter Fraud Team. 

Appropriate 
resource is not 
directed towards 
minimising the risk 
of fraud occurring. 

M Core 24.00 

20.02 Fraud Fraud 
Management 

National Fraud 
Initiative 

Manage and co-ordinate the 
NFI including additional checks 
on data matches where 
appropriate. 

Statutory 
requirements are 
not complied with. 

M Core 16.00 

P
age 90



Appendix A 
Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/23

Page 24 of 25 

Ref Directorate Service Area Audit Brief Risk and Impact Risk Core / 
Assurance 

Plan 
days 
Total 

21.00 Unplanned 
Work 

Fraud 
Investigation 

Audit resource 
set aside to 
respond to 
suspected 
fraud issues, 
whistleblowing 
referrals or 
other 
investigations 
that may be 
requested. 

Audit resource set aside to 
respond to suspected fraud 
issues, whistleblowing referrals 
or other investigations that 
may be requested. 

      100.00 

22.00 Unplanned 
Work Non-Fraud 

Response to  
- management 
requests 
- ad hoc work 

        100.00 

22.01 Unplanned 
Work Non-fraud Support for 

Covid-19  Covid-19 Support Support for Covid-
19  N/A N/A 25.00 

22.02 Unplanned 
Work Non-fraud 

External 
Authority 
PSIAS reviews 

Time to carry out reviews of 
other local LA's Internal Audit 
Functions as part of the North 
West CAE network 

N/A N/A N/A 20.00 

P
age 91



Appendix B 
Internal Audit Structure

Page 25 of 25 

Auditor

Senior Auditor
Senior Auditor

(0.6)

Auditor
(Term Time Only)

Head of Internal Audit, Risk, Insurance & Counter Fraud

Audit Manager Audit Manager

P
age 92



Report to Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 10 March 2022 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Martin Nixon 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2021/22 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 

during Quarter 3 of the 2021/22 year. 
 
Reviews of the Corporate risk registers managed by both the Council and 
the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
have been completed. There are no Red risks to report within either the 
RBC Corporate risk register or the risk registers of individual RBC Services. 
 
The Insurance team achieved a claims cost mitigation result of £1,076,871 for 
the claims closed in the quarter. The Council was awarded payment of 
£12,786 legal fees against the claimant, following a finding of fundamental 
dishonesty at a hearing for an alleged highways fall. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. 

 
This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through the management of risk and insurance services. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 

accordance with their work programme and oversight of governance, to 
scrutinise Risk Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 
2021/22 year for all Council Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93

Agenda Item 12



Key Points for Consideration 
 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Risk Register 
 
The Leadership Team proactively manage risks listed under the Corporate 
risk register. The Corporate risk register can be viewed under Appendix 1. 
 
Following reviews completed in January/February 2022, risk owners have 
maintained unchanged risk scores for all Corporate risks. Scores that had 
previously increased in response to Covid-19 in 2020 returned to pre-
pandemic levels in 2021 due to reduced concern over financial budgets and 
the easing of UK lockdown restrictions. 
 
The following table provides selected risk review updates received in 
January/February – 
 

Risk ref. Risk Details Residual 
Score 

CRR0002 

Risk: A catastrophic event and lack of 
organisational resilience leads to inability to 
deliver services. 
Review: A planned IT disaster recovery test has 
been undertaken. 

 
 

12 

CRR0007 

Risk: Risk of a breakdown in community 
stability. 
Review: The pandemic and increased costs of 
living have increased inequalities in the 
borough. These are to be addressed through the 
Covid recovery plan and community recovery 
plan. 

 
 
 

12 

CRR0009 

Risk: Risk of serious harm to a vulnerable adult 
due to the act or omission by Council employees 
Review: A weekly resilience report monitors 
pressures within the system. Work is ongoing to 
create a case-waiting tool, and provide risk ‘front 
door’ assessment. Refreshed training is being 
provided across service. Strong partnership 
working continues on individual cases. 

 
 
 

15 

CRR0010 

Risk: Failure to take opportunities for growth 
leading to a lack of investment in the Borough 
Review: A new monthly Strategic Projects 
Board chaired by the Chief Executive and 
attended by senior managers is in place to 
oversee project delivery and spend, and 
manage/mitigate any key financial risks. 

 
 
 

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Risk Management 
 
Integrated Health and Social Care Risk Management 
The Corporate Risk and Assurance Framework report of 1 March 2022 
submitted to Leadership Team by the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) included commentary on 8 risks 
having residual scores of 16 or more. 
 
Red Residual risk scores under the CCG Assurance Framework included – 
 

Strategic 
Objective 

Risk Details Residual 
Score 

To be high 
performing 

S01-58 

Risk: Inability to plan beyond 22-23 due to 
Covid-19 and Planning Guidance limitations / 
ICS funding arrangements 
Controls: Draft financial flow proposals 
developed, key principles to support financial 
flows and financial management agreed. 

 
 

16 

To be high 
performing 
S01-049 

Risk: Impact of reduced workforce capacity on 
the delivery of outcomes 
Controls: Continue to be fully engaged in GM 
construct work, Winter plan implementation, 
Covid vaccination and booster rollout, Outbreak 
plan 

 
16 

Prevention 
& Self Care 

S02-003 

Risk: Increased transmission of the Covid-19, 
risk to health and life 
Controls: Enhanced vaccine booster 
programme, Outbreak plan, Extensive testing 
programme in place, Plans to increase system 
resilience especially around staff. 

 
16 

Children, 
Young 

People & 
Families 

S06-007 c 

Risk: Escalating waiting times for autism 
assessment (children aged over 5 years). 
Controls: Informal recovery action plan agreed 
with provider, assessment now recommenced 
wit use of masks, staff working weekends. 

 
 

16 

Children, 
Young 

People & 
Families 

S06-007.e 

Risk: Surges in crisis demand for Acute 
Children’s Mental Health services. 
Controls: Regular meetings with Pennine Care, 
regular discussion at SCCMB, investment into 
crisis care pathways via GM, and design of new 
models of care. 

 
 

16 

 
The summaries provided in the table above indicate that the highest 
Residual risk scores as at March were associated with the impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic on other non-Covid areas of health care, and also health 
issues within the ‘Children, Young People and Families’ strategic objective. 
There are extensive planning and recovery activities underway in the CCG 
and LCO to mitigate these risks. 
 
 
 

Page 95



6 
 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Management Results 
 
There are currently no Red risks to report within either the Corporate risk 
register or the risk registers of individual RBC Services. 
 
 
Insurance Team 
 
Performance 
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from October 
2021 to December 2021 is set out below. 
 
The team received a total of 96 new claims notifications during quarter 3. 
This total can be divided between insurance classes – Highways (42), Motor 
(32), Other Public Liability (14), Employer’s Liability (1), Others (7). This 
figure is almost exactly the same as the 95 claims received during Q3 
2020/21. 
 
A total of 97 claims were closed by the team during quarter 3. This figure can 
be divided between the insurance classes - Highways (63), Motor (16), Other 
Public Liability (16), Employer’s Liability (2). Please note Closed claims will 
largely not be the same incidents as the newly notified claims referred to 
above. The claims handling process can run over a period of months or 
years, and therefore the team are working on a combination of new and 
existing cases. 
 
Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2021/22 Q3 
The claims cost mitigation figures displayed in the table below are calculated 
by subtracting the final settled amounts for closed claims against the highest 
reserve amounts for the same losses during the handling of the claims. 
These statistics are a useful measure of the level of challenge put forward by 
the Insurance Team during their investigations, liaison with Council Services, 
and joint work with solicitors to defend against legal proceedings. 
 
 
 

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation 

October 30 £156,805 

November 37 £327,159 

December 30 £592,907 

Total 97 £1,076,871 

 
The table shows that the Insurance Team achieved a total cost mitigation of 
£1,076,871 on settled claims costs during Q3. This figure includes a saving 
of approximately £100,000 on an Employer’s Liability de-gloving claim and a 
further £100,000 on a data breach claim, both of which were repudiated by 
the Council. 
 

Page 96



 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8 
 

 
Fundamental Dishonesty judgement 
The Council was awarded payment of £12,786 legal fees in January 2022 
following a finding of fundamental dishonesty, which allows the enforcement 
of costs against the claimant. 
 
The allegation was for an alleged trip/fall into an open drainage grid which had 
been reserved at approximately £40,000 prior to the hearing. This was 
contested by use of a section 58 Highways Act 1980 (reasonable system of 
inspection) defence. An officer from the Highways team had attended the 
scene four days prior to the alleged incident and secured the cover back in 
place. Every inconsistency between the initial claim, medical report, 
proceedings, witness statements and even the ambulance call transcript was 
highlighted. 
 
The claim was dismissed at court and the judge also found that the 
independent witness, the claim for care and assistance, and therefore the 
claim, to be fundamentally dishonest. Although the saving was relatively 
small, this sends a clear message that Rochdale BC will pursue those who 
make dishonest claims. 
 
 
Priorities for the Next Quarter 
 
 Risk team to continue support and advice to Service teams to assist in 

review of risk registers. 
 Insurance team to continue work alongside STAR Procurement and our 

appointed brokers to coordinate the 2022 tender for the Council’s 
insurance programme. 

  

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
9. If the Council did not exercise diligence in risk management and claims 

handling it would expose the Council to risks of unfounded legal claims and 
therefore unnecessary additional cost. 
 
The Insurance Team achieved a claims cost mitigation total of £1,076,871 
for settled claims during Q3 – see section 7.2. Also a fundamental 
dishonesty judgement resulted in the avoidance of £12,786 legal fees for an 
alleged Highways trip/fall claim – included in section 7.3.  
 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council 
will be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management 
reports. These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed 
with management and summarised within this report.  

10. 
 

 
 

Page 97



Consultation 
 
11. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 

agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
 

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 98



1

Corporate Risk Register 
 

Generated on: 21 February 2022 
 

 
 
CRR0001 Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious service and 

financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Asif Ibrahim      Inherent 4 4 16  

          Residual 3 3 9  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 

CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed Asif Ibrahim 01-May-2022 

CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 

CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance issues Asif Ibrahim 01-May-2022 

CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 

CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit Asif Ibrahim 01-May-2022 

CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality Commission etc.) Steve Rumbelow 01-May-2022 

CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 

CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Michael Garraway 01-May-2022 

CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed Asif Ibrahim 01-May-2022 

CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and followed Asif Ibrahim 01-May-2022 

CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and outcome monitoring is embedded John Rooney 01-May-2022 

CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data control requirements is 
embedded 

John Rooney 01-May-2022 

          

P
age 99



2

CRR0002 A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild the 
infrastructure (Operational 

Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Mark Widdup      Inherent 5 4 20  

          Residual 4 3 12  

01-May-2022 

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy annually Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy quarterly Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2005 Emergency plan, refreshed annually, communicated and understood Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific purposes Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident officers Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct exercises Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and resilience Judith Jones 01-May-2022 

CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 
    
CRR0004 Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Julie Murphy      Inherent 4 4 16  

          Residual 3 2 6  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by Cabinet and Council Julie Murphy 01-May-2022 

CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial challenges Julie Murphy 01-May-2022 

CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 

CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment Julie Murphy; Neil 
Thornton 

01-May-2022 

CRR4011 Balances are sufficient to support the Council to remain a going concern Julie Murphy 01-May-2022 
 

P
age 100



3

CRR0005 Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ Legal) 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Neil Thornton      Inherent 4 3 12  

          Residual 4 2 8  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed Rosemary Barker 01-May-2022 

CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-learning Rosemary Barker 01-May-2022 

CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to Rosemary Barker 01-May-2022 

CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted and addressed Rosemary Barker 01-May-2022 

CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood Michael Garraway 01-May-2022 

CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 
         
CRR0006 Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Steve Rumbelow      Inherent 4 3 12  

          Residual 4 2 8  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives) Steve Rumbelow 01-May-2022 

CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority and AGMA with other Council Leaders 
and GM Mayor 

Steve Rumbelow 01-May-2022 

CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel Steve Rumbelow 01-May-2022 

CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution issues as appropriate Steve Rumbelow 01-May-2022 
         

P
age 101



4

CRR0007 Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational) 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Mark Widdup     John Rooney Inherent 4 4 16  

          Residual 4 3 12  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR7001 The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early identification and 
intervention on community tensions and develop positive community cohesion and diversionary activities to 
mitigate risks of escalation in tension. 

Mark Dalzell 01-May-2022 

CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and intelligence sharing eg. Active 
citizens and multi-faith forums. 

Sajjad Miah 01-May-2022 

CRR7004 Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate risks Sajjad Miah 01-May-2022 

CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah 01-May-2022 

CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah 01-May-2022 

CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 
    
CRR0008 Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal) 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Sharon Hubber      Inherent 5 4 20  

          Residual 5 3 15  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Partnership in place which provides robust challenge through lead 
safeguarding partners meetings, full partnership meetings and meeting of the Quality Assurance Group 

Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections Steve Kay 01-May-2022 

CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched Steve Kay 01-May-2022 

P
age 102



5

CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in schools Sharon Hubber 01-May-2022 

CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 
      
CRR0009 Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal) 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Claire Richardson      Inherent 5 4 20  

          Residual 5 3 15  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge Claire Richardson 01-May-2022 

CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) Tracey Harrison 01-May-2022 

CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self-assessment of practice standards applied across service Tracey Harrison 01-May-2022 

CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations regarding safeguarding practice 
are clearly defined and communicated 

Tracey Harrison 01-May-2022 

CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits Tracey Harrison 01-May-2022 

CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Tracey Harrison 01-May-2022 

CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge Claire Richardson 01-May-2022 

CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Tracey Harrison 01-May-2022 

CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Tracey Harrison 01-May-2022 

CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 
               

P
age 103



6

CRR0010 Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity 
Risk Owner Risk Reviewer   Impact Likelihood Score Risk Score Next Review Date 

Mark Robinson      Inherent 4 4 16  

          Residual 3 3 9  

01-May-2022 

                      

Controls Assigned to Next Review Due 

CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated Julie Murphy 01-May-2022 

CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Mark Robinson 01-May-2022 

CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently Mark Robinson 01-May-2022 

CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated Beverley Hirst 01-May-2022 

CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making Shaun Knowles 01-May-2022 

CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news Kate Fletcher 01-May-2022 

CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Kate Fletcher 01-May-2022 
 
 

P
age 104



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



 

Report to Audit and Governance Committee  
 

Date of Meeting 10th March 2022 
Portfolio Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Monitoring Officer 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Proposed Amendments to Contract Procedure Rules  
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The Council has been involved in review of Contract Procedure Rules through 

the STaR Joint Committee along with Stockport, Trafford and Tameside 
Councils.  
 
Following the review, the updated Contract Procedure Rules are appended to 
the report, along with a summary of the proposed changes 
 
The Council is now required to formally adopt the updated Contract Procedure 
Rules through the appropriate governance process. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. 
 
 

That the Audit and Governance Committee recommend to Council the 
approval and adoption of the updated Contract Procedure Rules and that the 
Council Constitution be amended to incorporate the changes. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Following a review of Contact Procedure Rules through the STaR Joint 

Committee, the Council is required to formally adopt the updated Contract 
Procedure Rules through the appropriate governance process. 
 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. The CPRs are standing orders made pursuant to s135 of Local Government 

Act 1972. Where such standing orders are made, they shall include provision 
for securing and regulating competition for contracts entered into. They may 

Page 107

Agenda Item 13



also include exemptions to such provisions under certain thresholds specified 
within the CPRs. 

 
4.1 Since the establishment of STAR Procurement, it has been considered 

essential that all partner authorities to have a single set of CPRs in order to 
harmonise procurement processes and enable the shared service vehicle to 
deliver an effective and consistent procurement processes. 
 

4.2 The Council’s current CPRs have been harmonised and adopted into the 
Constitution of each of the STAR Authorities (“Stockport, Trafford, Tameside 
and Rochdale”).  
 

4.3 The task of developing, agreeing and adopting a set of harmonised rules was 
a substantial and significant piece of work which was necessary to ensure that 
STAR Procurement and the STAR Authorities could work together against a 
set of agreed rules. The harmonisation project was completed by the CPR 
working group which consisted of Legal and Finance Officers from each of the 
STAR Authorities. 

 
4.4 Overarching Summary  
4.5 The proposed CPRs include some instances of amendments and additions to 

the rules, in others and in order to ensure that the CPRs are “future proof” we 
have removed some of the operational aspects of the rules and transferred 
those provisions to the STAR Procurement Handbook where additional 
detailed guidance can be provided and updated periodically to reflect 
operational changes and improvements. 
 

4.6 The overarching theme of the review has been to rationalise the CPRs and, 
where possible, remove those parts which relate to procedural aspects in 
order for these to be dealt with in the Procurement Handbook: 
 

4.6.1 The procurement handbook is an operational guidance document which 
provides in depth procedural procurement detail.   
 

4.6.2 The CPRs have also been updated to take account of the changes to 
legislation and the UK’s exit from the EU. 
 

4.7       Procurement Thresholds 
4.8 An amendment which has been considered is to increase the threshold trigger 

for a one quote exercise for both Supplies, Services and Concessions and 
Works and Public Works Concessions from £4,999 to £9,999.   
 

4.9 In considering this amendment, the following data has been used to assess 
the impact of the amendment: 

 
4.9.1 Over the past year, the number of contracts falling within this bracket amounts 

to 166 contracts or about 40 per council per annum.   

Page 108



4.9.2 The effect on the overall spend is £1,139,194 which is 0.0009% based on 
£1,200,000,000 estimated four council controllable spend of £300m each. 
 

4.10 On this basis, and that it represents very little risk to the councils, the 
threshold has been increased to £9,999 in the proposed new CPRs.   
 

4.11 Modifications 
4.12 Section 9 of the current CPRs deals with modifications and the circumstances 

where these are permitted: 
 
4.12.1 A modification is where the parties agree to change the terms of the original 

agreement, for example where additional works or services have become 
necessary and were not included in the original procurement; 
 

4.12.2 The CPRs set out the remits, described as grounds, within which such 
changes can be made. 
 

4.13 The current CPRs reflect the requirements as they are prescribed in the PCRs 
in respect of modifications, which means that the principles of the PCRs are 
applicable modifications made to contracts which fall below the legislative 
thresholds. Although including these provisions within CPRs is not a 
legislative requirement, these principles remain in the new proposed CPRs as 
they provide clear requirements which help to achieve consistent, transparent 
and reasonable practices and ensures parity between the CPRs and the 
Regulations.  
 

4.14 However, whilst it is important to set such a high standard, it is also equally 
important that we are not unnecessarily fettered by the requirements of the 
regulations where to do so would place an onerous obligation on the authority.  
 

4.15 Having assessed the procedures linked to modifications and the associated 
risks of an amendment thereto, the proposed CPRs include the following 
amendments: 

 
4.15.1 An additional ground will be added to permit the modification of a contract 

where there are; “any other exceptional circumstances as agreed by the SRO 
for Legal” (9.3.1(g)).  The additional ground will  offer some flexibility in 
exceptional circumstances whilst requiring the approval of the SRO for Legal 
will allow for any risk to be minimised;  
 

4.15.2 Rule 9.3.6 now also provides for a simplified process where the modification 
is in respect of an extension to the term of a contract which was provided for 
in the initial procurement documents and the contract.  In these 
circumstances, the SRO for the relevant service and the Director of 
Procurement (STAR) will be authorised to approve the modification.  This will 
ensure that contracts with inbuilt extension periods can be extended without 
undue delay or burdensome bureaucracy.  This change does not represent 
any risk to the Council. 

Page 109



Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5. There are no direct budget implications. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. 
 
 
 
6.1 

It is important that the STAR Authorities continue to have an agreed set of 
harmonised CPRs in order to support STAR Procurement as a shared 
service vehicle. 
 
A review of the CPRs at this time is important as legislative changes following 
the UK’s exit from the European Union. It provided a useful opportunity to 
pause and reflect on practices and approach to procurement to ensure that 
efficiencies and quality can be reflected. 

  
Consultation 

 
7. 
 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
7.2 

Each STAR Authority will progress the proposed new CPRs through its own 
governance procedures. 
 
The CPRs will be presented at the STAR Joint Committee in March for 
information.  Pending agreement and adoption of the proposed revisions 
(and any amendment thereto), the proposed amendment will need to be 
incorporated into the Constitution of each Council. 
 
STAR Procurement will undertake a programme of updating the 
Procurement Handbook to provide additional guidance as necessary.  
 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Working Group hosted by STaR 

Procurement 
Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, 
Trafford. 

 

For Further Information Contact: Michael Garraway 
Head of Governance 
michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk  

Page 110

mailto:michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk


 

CPRs including local rules listed under Schedule One  

 

Contents  

 

1. Introduction ...................................................................................................................................3 

2. Interpretations and Definitions .....................................................................................................4 

3. Basic Principles and Responsibilities .............................................................................................4 

4. Contracts to which these Rules do not apply ................................................................................5 

5. Preparation Steps ...........................................................................................................................6 

5.1 Governance Requirements: Approval Process ..................................................................6 

5.2 Appraisal of the Procurement Options ..............................................................................6 

5.3 Framework Agreements and DPS ......................................................................................7 

5.4 Market Research, Engagement and Consultation .............................................................7 

5.5 Estimating the Total Value of a Contract ...........................................................................7 

5.6 Standards and Award Criteria ..........................................................................................10 

6. Quotes ..........................................................................................................................................10 

6.1 Requests for Quotes .........................................................................................................10 

6.2 Submission and Receipt of Quotes ..................................................................................10 

6.3 Amendments to Quotes ...................................................................................................11 

6.4 Evaluation of Quotes ........................................................................................................11 

6.5 Contract Award – through a Quotation Process .............................................................11 

7. Tenders .........................................................................................................................................12 

7.1 Invitations to Tender ........................................................................................................12 

7.3 Submission and Receipt of Tenders .................................................................................13 

7.4 Verifying and Opening Tenders .......................................................................................13 

7.5 Amendments to Tenders .................................................................................................13 

7.6 Evaluation of Tenders ......................................................................................................13 

7.7 Contract Award – through a Tender process ...................................................................13 

Page 111



7.8 Enquiries about the Tender process ................................................................................14 

8. Contract Provisions and Contract Formalities .............................................................................14 

8.1 Contract Provisions ..........................................................................................................14 

8.2 Contract Formalities .........................................................................................................15 

8.3 Contracts under Seal ........................................................................................................15 

8.4 Transfer of Contracts .......................................................................................................16 

9. Exemptions and Modifications ....................................................................................................16 

9.1 Exemptions .......................................................................................................................16 

9.2 Procedure for Exemptions ...............................................................................................17 

9.3 Modifications to a Contract or Framework Agreement ..................................................17 

9.4 Procedure for Modifications ............................................................................................19 

10. Declarations of Interest and Anti-Bribery and Corruption .....................................................19 

11. Contract Management .............................................................................................................20 

12. Retaining Relevant Documents ...............................................................................................20 

SCHEDULE 1 ..........................................................................................................................................22 

 

 

Page 112



1. Introduction 

1.1 These Contract Procedure Rules (“Rules”) are standing orders made pursuant to Section 135 
of the Local Government Act 1972. Compliance with the Rules and observance of all 
relevant legislation from which they emanate in particular, but not limited to: the Public 
Procurement (Amendments, Repeals and Revocations) Regulations 2016; the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015; Concession Contracts Regulations 2016; Equality Act 2010; 
Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012; the Local Government (Transparency Requirements) 
(England) Regulations 2015 (As amended from time to time);  and the associated principles 
relating to non-discrimination, equal treatment and transparency,  is mandatory for all 
Officers and Members. 

 
1.2 Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council, Trafford 

Borough Council and Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council ( individually referred to as 
the “Council” and collectively referred to as the “STAR Authorities”) have agreed, through an 
Inter Authority Agreement (“IAA”) to facilitate the joint delivery of Procurement Functions 
with a view to the attainment of a more economical, efficient and effective discharge of its 
Procurement Functions via a shared procurement service to be identified as “STAR”. Other 
authorities may, from time to time, join the IAA. 

 
1.3 Each of the STAR Authorities have agreed to establish and participate in a joint committee 

(the “Joint Committee”) and have agreed to delegate their Executive and to the extent that 
the activities of the Joint Committee are not executive functions the STAR Authorities 
delegates to the joint committee the power to do anything which is calculated to facilitate, 
or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of the Procurement Functions delegated to it.  

 
1.4 The Rules ensure that Procurement Functions are undertaken in a legally compliant, 

transparent, fair and competitive manner. These Rules shall apply to all procurement 
activity where the Council is to procure any Supplies, Services or the execution of Works, or 
enters into a Concessions Contract as either a contracting authority or commissioner of 
such, regardless of the origin of funding (such as external grants, partnership funding, 
pooled or joint budgets for example). 

 
1.5 These Rules allow for Joint Procurement activity to be undertaken by STAR Procurement on 

behalf of some or all of the STAR Authorities and any other Contracting Authorities 
(together the Participating Authorities) who may, from time to time opt to participate in the 
Joint Procurement. The Participating Authorities will select one of their number to act as 
lead in the process (Lead Authority).  The Lead Authority will draft a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) to be agreed and signed by the Participating Authorities.  The MOU 
will set out the commitment of resources, and other considerations that each will dedicate 
to the Joint Procurement activity.  The Participating Authorities and Officers must follow 
their own governance procedures and these Contract Procedure Rules as appropriate. 

 
1.6 The Joint Committee shall monitor compliance with the Rules and undertake an annual 

review of the Rules. The Joint Committee may present recommendations for amendments 
to the Rules to the Council from time to time and any such amendments shall be subject to 
the Council’s own ratification procedures.  

 
1.7 Officers and elected Members involved in procurement activity must comply with these 

Rules, the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations and the Council’s Employees 
Code of Conduct/Members Code of Conduct. Officers must ensure that any agents, 
consultants and contractual partners acting on their behalf, also comply with these Rules. 
They must also have due regard to any guidance provided by STAR, STAR Legal and their 
own legal teams. Any failure to comply with any of the provisions of these Rules must be 

Page 113



reported immediately to the SRO for Legal. Failure by any Officer or Member to comply 
with the provisions of these Rules may lead to disciplinary action being taken against them. 

 
1.8 These Rules must be read in conjunction with the Council’s Constitution and in particular 

the Financial Procedure Rules, the Procurement Handbook, any relevant guidance 
documents endorsed by the Council and the Council’s local Rules as contained in Schedule 
1. 

 
1.9 A number of local Rules can be found in the attached Schedule 1 and which form part of 

these Rules. 

2. Interpretations and Definitions 

2.1 In the event of any conflict between English law and these Rules and Council Policy, the 
requirements of English law shall prevail over these Rules and Council Policy. 

 
2.2 Any reference to legislation, primary or secondary, shall include any 

amendments/replacements made from time to time. 
 
2.3 All figures specified in these Rules are exclusive of VAT. 

 
2.4 In the event of any doubt as to the interpretation of these Rules, or as to proper procedure 

to be followed, advice should be sought from STAR in the first instance. 
 
2.5 In these Rules the words and phrases below have the meanings detailed at Schedule 2 

3. Basic Principles and Responsibilities  

3.1 Value for money is fundamental to the procurement activity carried out by the Council. This 
should be achieved through competition, unless there are compelling reasons to the contrary. 

 
3.2 In addition to these Rules, above set financial Regulation Thresholds, procurement 

undertaken by the Council is subject to a legal framework which encourages free and open 
competition and value for money, to ensure that the public procurement market is open and 
competitive and that suppliers are treated equally and fairly. The legislative rules cover 
aspects such as advertising of contracts, procedures for assessing company credentials, 
awarding the contracts and remedies (penalties) when these rules are breached.  

 
3.3 When procurement activity is not subject to the Public Contracts Regulations because the 

estimated value of a contract falls below the relevant financial Regulations Threshold, Officers 
and elected Members must adhere to these Rules. 

 
3.4 In all procurement activity, Officers and elected Members must comply with the following 

overriding principles of procurement: 
a. non-discrimination; 
b. openness/transparency; 
c. equal treatment for all;  
d. mutual recognition; and 
e. proportionality 
Advice and guidance around the application of these principles in respect of procurement 
activity can either be accessed via the Procurement Handbook or from STAR Procurement or 
legal officers.  
 

Page 114



3.5 All procurement activity must be compliant with all relevant legislation, the Council’s 
Constitution, the Procurement Handbook and the local policies in Schedule 1, and as a 
minimum have regard to: 

 
a. The need to achieve accountability through sound governance mechanisms, with 

informed decisions which facilitates procurement activity which demonstrates the highest 
standards of integrity, transparency and fairness and enables the Council to discharge its 
responsibility in respect of expenditure of public money; 

b. The need to provide consistent procurement policy to suppliers and achieve competitive 
supply;  

c. The need to meet commercial, regulatory and corporate priorities of the Council; 
d. The need to procure responsibly by considering how what is to be procured may improve 

social, environmental and economic well-being of the Council’s relevant area; 
e. The need to ensure Value for Money, Best Value and achieve efficiencies by 

administering procurement processes which are cost effective 
f. The need to ensure fair-dealing by ensuring that suppliers are treated fairly and without 

unfair discrimination, including protection of commercial confidentiality where 
compatible with the Council’s obligations under FOIA and EIR; 

g. The need to ensure legislative compliance in procurement processes and award of 
contracts; 

h. The need to promote responsiveness by endeavouring to meet the aspirations, 
expectations and needs of the community served by the procurement processes; 

i. The need to provide transparency by ensuring that there is openness and clarity on the 
Council’s procurement policy and its delivery and a clear audit trail in relation to 
procurement activity. 

j. The need to Social Value by considering and evaluating Social Value as part of the 
procurement process including the use of the Social Value Portal for all over £50,000 
contracts. 

 
3.6 The Procurement Handbook contains further detailed practical guidance and information on 

the above requirements and process steps which Officers and elected Members must refer to 
when undertaking procurement activities.  

 

4. Contracts to which these Rules do not apply 
4.1 Where there is any doubt regarding the application of these Rules, Officers and elected 

Members must seek guidance from STAR, STAR Legal or their own legal team. 

4.2 These Rules do not apply to the following: 

a. employment contracts for Officers engaged on a PAYE basis; 

b. Contracts relating solely to the disposal or acquisition of securities;  

c. Contracts for the acquisition of an interest in land and property; 

d. Contracts for the appointment of Counsel or the appointment of experts for the purpose 
of legal, or potential legal proceedings by the SRO for Legal Services; 

e. Grant funding agreements; 

f. Certain Qualifying Contracts between entities within the public sector; and 

g. Any contracts specifically excluded by relevant legislation  

Page 115



5. Preparation Steps 
Officers and elected Members must refer to the Procurement Handbook before undertaking any 
activity in connection with procurement. 
 
5.1 Governance Requirements: Approval Process 
5.1.1 The ASO must ensure that they are aware of what decisions must be made at each stage 

of the procurement process: 
 The approval process is fundamental to determine the timescales within which a 

procurement exercise can be completed. Approval requirements involving 
decisions which must be taken by the Council’s cabinet or Council is likely to 
extend the overall procurement timescales; 

 The ASO must refer to the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of Delegation and/or 
seek confirmation from its legal team in order to determine the correct and 
appropriate approval process before any procurement activity is initiated. 
 

5.1.2 The ASO must submit a PID to STAR prior to undertaking any procurement activity. By 
submitting the PID the ASO confirms that they have the authority to initiate the 
procurement activity. The PID must also determine where there are further approval 
steps which must be taken throughout the procurement process: 

 The ASO will be required to provide evidence of any decisions made and/or 
approvals obtained in respect of the relevant procurement activity.  

5.2 Appraisal of the Procurement Options 
5.2.1 Once the PID has been received, the ASO, together with the APO, must conduct an options 

appraisal of the procurement options and will determine, as a minimum:  
 Contract value; 
 the most viable route to market;   
 procurement process requirements and associated documentation;  
 market research, engagement and consultation requirements;  
 associated implications; 
 key actions; 
 procurement timescales against approval requirements;  
 Specification or Quotation Specification as appropriate; 
 Social Value and the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the 

borough and the benefit which the procurement process can bring to the 
community and have regard to the duty to secure continuous improvement in 
accordance with Best Value. 

Further information on the above can be found in the Procurement Handbook. 
 
5.2.2 The ASO and APO must determine if procurement activity will result in either the 

employees of the Council or its Contractor transferring to a new employer and they must 
consult STAR Legal and/or their own legal teams to ensure compliance with TUPE, and 
other related legislation, and to assess the implications in respect of pension 
arrangements. 

 
5.2.3 The ASO and APO will seek advice and guidance from STAR Legal and/or from colleagues 

on a wider basis where necessary or desirable. 
 
5.2.4 The ASO will liaise with STAR to develop either a Specification or a quotation request 

commensurate to the scope of the Supplies, Services, execution of Works, or Concessions 
Contract. 

Page 116



5.3 Framework Agreements and DPS 
5.3.1 For the avoidance of doubt, a Framework Agreement or DPS is generally considered 

suitable where it has either been entered into by: 

a. the Council in compliance with these Rules; or 

b. another local authority, a local authority purchasing consortium or central government 
where the Framework Agreement or DPS has been tendered and awarded in accordance 
with procurement  legislation, and the Council is identified as a contracting authority. 

5.3.2 Where, following an options appraisal as required by Rule 5.2, a suitable Framework 
Agreement or DPS is identified, the requirements of Rule 5.5.4, Rule 6 (Quotes) and Rule 
7 (Tenders) will not be applicable and the ASO and APO must ensure that: 

a. An order is placed or a contract is awarded in accordance with the terms and conditions 
set out in  the relevant Framework Agreement or DPS; and  

b. Where applicable, a mini-competition (the tender process required by the Framework 
Agreement) is held in accordance with rules of the Framework Agreement or DPS; and 

c. The correct contractual documentation is entered into in accordance with approval 
requirements. 

5.3.3 Framework Agreements must not be for more than four years (including options to 
extend) unless otherwise authorised by the SRO for Legal. 

5.4 Market Research, Engagement and Consultation 
5.4.1 The ASO and APO will determine market research, engagement and consultation 

requirements and where relevant the APO will determine where an ASO may consult 
potential Bidders or Tenderers in general terms prior to a request for a Quote or an 
Invitation to Tender provided this does not prejudice any potential Bidders or Tenderers. 

 
5.4.2 The ASO and APO must not seek or accept technical advice on the preparation of a quotation 

request or an Invitation to Tender from anyone who may have a commercial interest in the 
Quote or Tender, as this may prejudice the equal treatment of all potential Bidders and 
Tenderers and/or distort competition.  
 

5.5 Estimating the Total Value of a Contract 
5.5.1 Rule 5.5 is applicable to the procurement of all contracts where an existing Framework 

Agreement or DPS is not being used to make an award of contract. 
 

5.5.2 Officers must calculate the total value of the Contract in order to determine which 
procurement activities should be commenced in accordance with these Rules.  The 
procurement activity that must be followed is prescribed in Table 1 below. 
 

5.5.3 The Council must not split Contracts in order to avoid public procurement rules or calculate 
the value of the Contract in such a way as to deliberately avoid exceeding the Regulation 
Thresholds or any threshold identified in these Rules. The value of a Contract should be 
calculated as follows and applies to the aggregate value of the Contract Agreement: 

 
Yearly potential contract value X Contract Period in years (including 
any option to extend) = Total value. 

5.5.4 The value of a Framework Agreement or DPS means the maximum estimated amount payable 
by the users of the Framework Agreement or DPS for the Supplies, Services or execution of 

Page 117



Works (excluding VAT) under Call-off Contracts entered into over the entire possible duration 
of the Framework Agreement or DPS. 

 
5.5.5 The value of the Contract  will determine which procurement activity to follow in accordance 

with Table 1 below subject to Rules 5.5.6 and 5.5.7:  
 
Table 1: Procurement Activities 

Supplies, Services and Concessions 

Value Band Value Procurement Activity Minimum Requirement 
for advertising the 
opportunity 

A £0 - £9,999.99 Minimum one Quote in 
accordance with Rule 6 – 
Quotes 

N/A* 

B £10,000 - £24,999.99 Minimum three Quotes in 
accordance with Rule 6 – 
Quotes – following 
consultation with STAR 

N/A* 

Minimum three Quotes in 
accordance with Rule 6 – 
Quotes and subject to risk-
based sourcing.  Route to 
market to be agreed in 
conjunction with STAR 

Electronic procurement 
portal 

C £25,000 and up to the 
Regulation Thresholds 

In accordance with Rule 7 – 
Tenders and subject to risk-
based sourcing.  Route to 
market to be agreed in 
conjunction with STAR 

Electronic procurement 
portal and Contracts 
Finder 

D Above the Regulation 
Thresholds 

Most appropriate procedure 
permitted by the Regulations 

Find a Tender Service 
Notice and Contracts 
Finder 

 

Works and Public Works Concessions 

Page 118



Value Band Value Procurement Activity Minimum Requirement 
for advertising the 
opportunity 

A £0 - £9,999.99 Minimum one Quote in 
accordance with Rule 6 – 
Quotes 

N/A* 

B £10,000 - £24,999.99 Minimum three Quotes in 
accordance with Rule 6 – 
Quotes following 
consultation with STAR 

N/A* 

Minimum three Quotes in 
accordance with Rule 6 – 
Quotes following 
consultation with STAR 

 

Electronic procurement 
portal 

C £25,000 up to the 
Regulation Threshold 

In accordance with Rule 7 – 
Tenders and subject to risk-
based sourcing.  Route to 
market to be agreed in 
conjunction with STAR 

 

 

Electronic procurement 
portal and Contracts 
Finder 

D Not Required   

E Above the Regulation 
Thresholds 

Most appropriate 
procedure permitted by the 
Regulations 

Find a Tender Service 
notice and Contracts 
Finder 

 

*WHERE ANY OPPORTUNITY OVER £25K IS OPENLY ADVERTISED, IT MUST BE PLACED ON CONTRACTS FINDER  

5.5.6 Where the Contract value falls within Value B or D for Supplies, Services and Concession 
Contracts or Value Band C or E for Works and Public Works Concession Contracts, the ASO shall 
determine which procurement activities should be undertaken by reference to the 
Procurement Handbook. 
 

5.5.7 Where the value of the Contract is above the Regulation Thresholds, the ASO and the APO will 
determine which procurement activity to follow in accordance with the Regulations. 
 

Page 119



5.5.8 Irrespective of the value in Rule 5.5.5 Contracts and Framework Agreements that are subject 
to European Union grant funding requirements shall be advertised in accordance with 
published guidance, ERDF National Procurement Requirements (ERDF-GN-1-004) as amended 
from time to time. 
 

5.6 Standards and Award Criteria  
5.6.1 The ASO must define award criteria that is appropriate to the procurement activity and 

designed to secure an outcome giving Value for Money for the Council. The basic award 
criteria shall include one of the following: 

a. Most economically advantageous tender (“MEAT”) - where considerations other than 
price also apply; 

b. Lowest price - where payment is to be made by the Council; 

c. Highest price - if payment is to be received. 

If MEAT is the chosen award criteria, advice must be obtained from STAR to ensure that it is 
compatible with the Regulations.  

5.6.2 The ASO must seek advice from STAR and/or STAR Legal to ensure any award criteria is 
compliant with relevant legislation and best practice. 

6. Quotes 
6.1 Requests for Quotes 
6.1.1 When requesting a Quote, a Quotation Specification must be provided to prospective 

Bidders to enable the submission of competitive Quotes.  

6.1.2 The request for a Quote shall also make reference to or include the following as a minimum: 

a. the terms and conditions of Contract that will apply; and 
b. notification that Quotes are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are compiled 

at the Bidder’s expense; and 
c. a description of the award criteria as appropriate and in accordance with Rule 5.6; and 
d. the date and time by which a Quote is to be submitted by; and 
e. that the Council is not bound to accept any Quotes submitted. 

 
6.1.3 The proposed form of Contract must comply with Rule 8 and the standard terms and 

conditions of Contract, as determined and made available by STAR Procurement must 
be used. Advice and approval must be obtained from a STAR Legal Officer where 
alternative terms and conditions are proposed. 

6.1.4 Where requests for a Quote are sought from more than one prospective Bidder, where 
possible, the request must be sent to each Bidder at the same time and contain the same 
conditions. Any supplementary information must be given on the same basis. 

6.2 Submission and Receipt of Quotes 
6.2.1 Bidders must be given a reasonable period in which to prepare and submit a proper Quote, 

consistent with the complexity of the Contract requirement. 

6.2.2 STAR and the ASO will together identify whether any of the Quotes received are abnormally 
low and where it is determined that a Quote is abnormally low, the ASO must take advice from 
STAR on how to proceed. 
 

Page 120



6.2.3 Where there is a deadline for quotes, any Quote (including all associated documents) 
submitted after the specified date and time for submission of Quotes shall only be accepted 
or considered by the Council in exceptional circumstances and only with agreement from the 
SRO for Legal Services. 

6.2.4 If fewer than the minimum number of Quotes is received as stipulated in Table 1 in Rule 5.5, 
then advice must be sought from the Director of Procurement (STAR) as to whether to 
proceed. Any decision must be recorded in writing and stored on the electronic procurement 
portal.. 

6.3 Amendments to Quotes 
6.3.1 The Council may accept amendments to Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under 

Framework Agreements, providing they are received prior to the closing date for submissions. 
In such circumstances, any alterations must be made by resubmitting a new Quote and clearly 
highlighting which Quote (and associated documents) is correct and which should be 
considered as part of the procurement activity. 
 

6.3.2 Approval for any amendments after the closing date (whether to submissions by bidders or to 
requirements by the Council) must be sought from the Director of Procurement (STAR) in 
consultation with STAR Legal. An example where a Quote may be amended after the closing 
date for submission would be if the amendment is made only in order to correct an 
arithmetical error.  

6.4 Evaluation of Quotes 
6.4.1 All compliant Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements and 

DPS, must be checked by the ASO to ensure they are arithmetically correct. The ASO may seek 
advice from STAR if there is any doubt. If any errors are found they should be notified to STAR 
for advice. 
 

6.4.2 Where MEAT is used as the award criteria, all evaluations including an explanation of the 
reasons for the scores should be recorded on the electronic procurement portal. The ASO 
must then confirm to STAR that the Contract can be awarded in accordance with Rule 6.5 by 
updating the PID. 

6.5 Contract Award – through a Quotation Process 
6.5.1 All Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, must be 

confirmed in writing before a decision to award can be made and all Quotes must be stored 
on the electronic procurement portal.  

6.5.2 All awards of contracts must be: 
a. in accordance with Council’s Scheme of Delegation; 
b. in accordance with Finance Procedure Rules/Regulations; and 
c. recorded in the PID, signed and dated by the ASO, the APO and the SRO for the 

relevant service.  

6.5.3 Once the decision has been made and the approval given to award the Contract, the ASO must 
send a Contract award letter to the winning Bidder(s). 
 

6.5.4 Prior to commencement of the Contract, the Contract must be completed in accordance with 
Rule 8.2 unless Rule 8.2.2 applies.  

6.5.5 STAR will, in consultation with STAR Legal where necessary, advise on the formalities for 
completion of the contract. 

Page 121



7. Tenders 
7.1 Invitations to Tender 

7.1.1 All Tender opportunities must be advertised on the electronic procurement portal and, where 
appropriate, Contracts Finder in accordance with Table 1 at Rule 5.5. 

7.1.2 The Invitation to Tender, shall include the following where appropriate, as 
determined/advised by STAR: 

a. A form upon which the Tenderer can provide details of its bid (“Form of Tender”); 

b. A reference to the Council’s ability to award in whole, in part or not at all;  

c. A Specification that describes the Council’s requirements in sufficient detail to enable the 
submission of competitive offers;  

d. the terms and conditions of Contract that will apply;  

e. A requirement for Tenderers to declare that the Tender content, price or any other figure 
or particulars concerning the Tender have not been disclosed by the Tenderer to any other 
party (except where such a disclosure is made in confidence for a necessary purpose);  

f. A requirement for Tenderers to fully complete and sign all Tender documents including 
the Form of Tender and certificates relating to canvassing and non-collusion;  

g. Notification that Tenders are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are compiled 
at the Tenderer’s expense;  

h. A description of the award procedure and the evaluation criteria to be used to assess 
Tenders including any weightings as considered appropriate and in accordance with Rule 
5.6. The evaluation criteria must be clear, concise and unambiguous and must be 
approved by the APO in consultation with the ASO. The evaluation criteria cannot be 
amended once published in the Invitation to Tender;  

i. The method by which any arithmetical errors discovered in the submitted Tenders are to 
be dealt with and in particular, whether the overall price prevails over the rates in the 
Tender or vice versa;  

j. Whether the Council is of the view that TUPE will be applicable in relation to the 
procurement activities; 

k. Whether additional arrangements will be required in relation to pension provision; 

l. Provisions relating to the Council’s termination rights in the event that corruption is 
discovered;  

m. The relevance and application of any parent company guarantees and/or bonds;  

n. That the Council is not bound to accept Tenders; and 

o. Any matters required by local polices in Schedule 1. 

7.1.3 The proposed form of Contract must comply with Rule 8 and the standard terms and 
conditions of Contract, as determined and made available by STAR Procurement, must be 
used. Advice and approval must be sought from a STAR Legal Officer where alternative terms 
and conditions are proposed. 

7.1.4 All communications relating to Tenders must be via the electronic procurement portal for 
reasons of transparency and in order that a record can be maintained. Page 122



 
7.2  Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures 

7.2.1 Any pre and/or post Tender clarification activity may only be undertaken in accordance with 
the procedure set out in the Procurement Handbook.  The ASO must seek guidance from 
STAR. 

7.3 Submission and Receipt of Tenders  
7.3.1 Tenderers must be given a reasonable period in which to prepare and submit a proper Tender, 

consistent with the complexity of the Contract requirement and in accordance with the 
Regulations. 

7.3.2 Any Tender (including all associated documents) submitted after the specified date and time 
for submission of Tenders shall only be accepted or considered by the Council in exceptional 
circumstances and only with agreement from the SRO for Legal Services. 

7.3.3 All Tenders received, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 
must remain unopened until the date and time specified by STAR has passed.  

7.3.4 If less than three Tenders are received then advice must be sought from the Director of 
Procurement (STAR) on how to proceed. Any decision must be recorded in writing and stored 
on the electronic procurement portal. 

7.4 Verifying and Opening Tenders  
7.4.1 Tenders are to be verified and opened in accordance with the procedures set out in the 

Procurement Handbook. 

7.5 Amendments to Tenders 
7.5.1 The Council may accept amendments to Tender submissions, including those in mini-

competitions under Framework Agreements, providing they are received prior to the closing 
date for submissions. 
 

7.5.2 A Tender may be amended after the closing date for submission if the amendment is made 
only in order to correct an arithmetical error. Such amendments may only be made with the 
prior approval of the Director of Procurement (STAR) in consultation with STAR Legal. 

7.6 Evaluation of Tenders 
7.6.1 If a SQ or an expression of interest prior to SQ was used, all those Tenderers must be given 

feedback at the relevant stage.  

7.6.2 STAR and the ASO will together identify whether any of the Quotes received are abnormally 
low and where it is determined that a Quote is abnormally low, the ASO must take advice from 
STAR on how to proceed. 

7.6.3 All compliant Tenders, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 
must be checked by the ASO and the APO to ensure they are arithmetically correct. If any 
errors are found they should referred to STAR for advice.   

7.6.4 Where MEAT is used as the award criteria, all evaluations including an explanation of the 
reasons for the scores should be recorded on the electronic procurement portal. The ASO 
must then confirm to STAR that the Contract can be awarded by updating the PID. 

7.6.5 In accordance with the Council’s risk-based sourcing policy, the APO may require a best and 
final offer from more than one Tenderer. 

7.7 Contract Award – through a Tender process 
7.7.1 The winning Tender shall be awarded the Contract in accordance with the award criteria used.  

Page 123



7.7.2 Where the Tender is not within the relevant approved budget but additional budgetary 
provision is available, the relevant ASO, with the approval of the SRO for Finance, may accept 
the Tender ensuring compliance with the Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations. 

7.7.3 The approval to award the Contract must be given in accordance with the Council’s Scheme 
of Delegation.   

7.7.4 All award decisions must be recorded in the PID, signed and dated by the ASO,the APO and 
the SRO for the relevant service.  

7.7.5 A Contract which has a contract value above the Regulation Thresholds, can only be awarded 
after a notice of the proposed award has been given to all unsuccessful Tenderers and the 10 
day standstill period has elapsed from the date the notice was given. If the 10 days expire on 
a non-working day, then the notice period will be deemed to have lapsed on the next working 
day.  

7.7.6 Once the decision to award a Contract is made, each Tenderer must be notified by either the 
ASO or the APO in writing of the outcome. All Tenderers must be notified simultaneously and 
as soon as possible of the intention to award the Contract to the successful Tenderer(s) and 
this should be done via the electronic procurement portal. The letters must include a 
description of the relative advantages of the successful Tenderer.  

7.7.7 Prior to commencement of the Contract, the Contract must be completed in accordance with 
Rule 8.2 unless Rule 8.2.2 applies.  

7.7.8 The APO must publish a contract award notice in the Find a Tender Service and on the 
Council‘s website no later than 48 days after the date of award of the Contract where a 
Contract value exceeds the Regulation Threshold and has been tendered pursuant to the 
Regulations or is subject to the relevant provision of the Regulations relating to Contract 
award.  

7.7.9 Contract award letters, feedback to Tenderers and, including any incidental documentation 
must be approved by the APO prior to sending and STAR Legal will advise on the contract 
Terms and Conditions where the value of the Contract is over the Regulation Thresholds. 

7.8 Enquiries about the Tender process 
7.8.1 The confidentiality of Tenders and the identity of Tenderers must be preserved at all times 

insofar as this is compatible with the Councils’ obligations under FOIA and EIR. 

7.8.2 If the Council receives a request for information under the FOIA as a result of the de-briefing 
process, the request must be referred to both the Director of Procurement (STAR) and the 
relevant Officer of the Council who deals with such requests. The Council will be responsible 
for responding to the request.  

7.8.3 Any challenges, complaints or requests for feedback, clarification or further information must 
be referred to the Director of Procurement (STAR) who will advise on how to respond and 
notify the SRO for Legal. 

8. Contract Provisions and Contract Formalities 

8.1 Contract Provisions 
8.1.1 All Contracts must be in writing and must set out the parties’ obligations, rights and 

risk allocations. Advice must be sought from STAR as to the appropriate form of 
Contract to be used and must be on the standard terms and conditions, as 
determined and made available by STAR Procurement. Advice and approval must be 

Page 124



obtained from a STAR Legal Officer where alternative terms and conditions are 
proposed. 

8.1.2 All Contracts, irrespective of value, shall, where appropriate, clearly specify as a minimum: 

a. What is to be supplied (i.e. the Works, materials, services, matters or things to be 
furnished, had or done) 

b. The provisions for payment (i.e. the price to be paid and when) 

c. The time, or times, within which the contract is to be performed 

d. The provisions for the Council to terminate the Contract and break clauses. 

e. The provision for collateral warranties from sub-contractors. 

f. Standards of performance 

g. Limitations on liability 

 

8.2 Contract Formalities 

8.2.1 Once a decision to award has been made in accordance with Rule 6.5.3 or 7.7.3, the Contract 
must be signed or sealed in accordance with Rule 8.3 and the procedures set out in the 
Procurement Handbook. 

8.2.2 All Contracts which are to be formally completed in writing must be completed before the 
Supplies are supplied, or the Service, execution of Works or Concessions Contract begins, 
except in exceptional circumstances, and then only with the prior approval from the SRO for 
Legal. 

8.2.3 A purchase order must be raised in the appropriate eProcurement system for all Supplies, 
Services and Works requirements to be acquired through an EPS and for all Contracts. The 
purchase order must refer to the terms and conditions of Contract between the Council and 
the Contractor. 

8.2.4 The ASO must ensure that the person signing on behalf of the Contractor has requisite legal 
authority to bind the Contractor. Where there is any doubt, the ASO must seek advice from 
the STAR Legal Officer or the Council’s own legal team. 

8.3 Contracts under Seal  
8.3.1 A Contract must be sealed where: 

a. The Council wishes to extend the liability period under the Contract and enforce its terms 
for up to 12 years; or 

b. The price to be paid or received under the Contract is a nominal price and does not reflect 
the value of the supplies or services; or 

c. There is any doubt about the authority of the person signing for the other contracting 
party; or 

d. The Contract value is £250,000 or above. 

8.3.2 The seal must be affixed in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s Constitution. 

Page 125



8.4 Transfer of Contracts 
8.4.1 Unless Rule 9.3.1(d) applies, no Contract should be transferred from one Contractor to 

another without first consulting STAR. Contracts can only be transferred if approved in 
accordance with the table below: 
 

Value of 
Contract/Quote 

Decision Maker 

All values SRO for Finance and SRO for Legal or their nominees in 
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and 
consultation in with the Director of Procurement (STAR) 

9. Exemptions and Modifications  
9.1 Exemptions  

9.1.1 In limited circumstances, it may be necessary to seek an Exemption from the Rules and 
guidance from STAR must be sought before any procurement activity commences. 

9.1.2 An Exemption is an exemption to the requirements under these CPRs only and cannot be 
considered where the Contract value is above the relevant Regulation Threshold. 

9.1.3 Exemptions will only be considered in exceptional circumstances. Examples of circumstances 
which may be considered exceptional could include the following: 

a. The arrangement is a permitted exemption from the requirement for competition 
contained in European or domestic legislation; 

b. To comply with legal requirements; 

c. The Contract is for Supplies, Services or the execution of Works which are required in 
circumstances of extreme urgency or unforeseeable emergency involving risks to persons, 
property or serious disruption to Council services;  

d. Repairs or parts — if the only option is to repair or buy new parts for existing equipment or 
buildings, and there is only one supplier; 

e. Where a Service review includes the intention to co-terminate relevant Contracts; 

f. Proprietary or patented supplies or services are proposed to be purchased which, in the 
opinion of the ASO, are only obtainable from one person, and it can be demonstrated 
that no reasonably satisfactory alternative to those proprietary or patented supplies is 
available; or 

g. The ASO can demonstrate that no genuine competition can be obtained in respect of the 
purchase of particular Supplies, Services or execution of Works; or 

h. The ASO is satisfied that the Services or execution of Works are of such a specialist nature 
that they can only be carried out by one person (e.g. statutory undertakers); or 

i. Supplies are proposed to be purchased by or on behalf of the Council at a public auction; 
or 

j. Supplies or Services are proposed to be purchased which are of a specialist or unique 
nature (such as antiquities for museums or a particular performance artist); or 

Page 126



k. Any other exceptional circumstances. 

9.2 Procedure for Exemptions 

9.2.1 To apply for an Exemption the ASO must fill in the Exemption Form and follow the process as 
set out in the Procurement Handbook.  

9.2.2 For the avoidance of doubt, in circumstances where either Rule 6.2.4 or Rule 7.3.4 applies, 
then an Exemption Form should not be completed. 

9.2.3 No commitment should be made to a potential Contractor prior to completion of the 
exemption procedure.  

9.2.4 The Director of Procurement (STAR) is responsible for ensuring a complete record of all 
Exemptions. A record of the decision approving an Exemption and the reasons for it must be 
stored on the electronic procurement portal. 

9.3 Modifications to a Contract or Framework Agreement 

9.3.1  Contracts and Framework Agreements may be modified during their term without a new 
procurement procedure in accordance with this Rule 9.3 in any of the following cases: 

(a) where the Modifications, irrespective of their monetary value, have been provided for 
in the initial procurement documents in clear, precise and unequivocal review clauses, 
which may include price revision clauses or options, provided that such clauses 

(i) state the scope and nature of possible modifications or options as well as the 
conditions under which they may be used, and 

(ii) do not provide for modifications or options that would alter the overall nature 
of the Contract or the Framework agreement; 

(b) for additional works, services or supplies by the original contractor that have become 
necessary and were not included in the initial procurement, where a change of 
contractor: 

(i) cannot be made for economic or technical reasons such as requirements of 
interchangeability or interoperability with existing equipment, services or 
installations procured under the initial procurement, or 

(ii) would cause significant inconvenience or substantial duplication of costs for 
the Council, 

provided that any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original 
Contract or Framework Agreement;  

(c) where all of the following conditions are fulfilled:   

(i) the need for Modification has been brought about by circumstances which a 
diligent Council could not have foreseen; 

(ii) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the  Contract or 
Framework Agreement; 

(iii) any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original Contract 
or Framework Agreement. 

(d) where a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Council had initially awarded the 
Contract or Framework Agreement as a consequence of: Page 127



(i) an unequivocal review clause or option in conformity with sub-paragraph (a), 
or 

(ii) universal or partial succession into the position of the initial contractor, 
following corporate restructuring, including takeover, merger, acquisition or 
insolvency, of another economic operator that fulfils the criteria for 
qualitative selection initially established, provided that this does not entail 
other substantial modifications to the contract and is not aimed at 
circumventing the application of the Regulations; 

(e) where the Modifications, irrespective of their value, are not substantial within the 
meaning of Rule 9.3.5; 

(f) where Rule 9.3.3 applies; or 

(g) where the Contract Value is below the relevant Regulation Threshold, any other 
exceptional circumstances as agreed by the SRO for Legal. 

9.3.2  Where several successive Modifications are made:—  

(a) the limitations imposed by the proviso at the end of Rule 9.3.1 (b) and by Rule 9.3.1 
(c)(iii) shall apply to the value of each Modification; and 

(b) such successive Modifications shall not be aimed at circumventing the Regulations. 

9.3.3  This Rule 9.3.3 applies where the value of the Modification is below both of the following 
values: 

(a) the relevant Regulation Threshold and 

(b) 10% of the initial Contract or Framework Agreement value for service and supply 
Contract or Framework Agreement and 15% of the initial Contract or Framework 
Agreement value for works contracts, 

provided that the Modification does not alter the overall nature of the Contract or Framework 
Agreement  

9.3.4 For the purposes of Rule 9.3.3 where several successive Modifications are made, the value shall 
be the net cumulative value of the successive modifications.  

9.3.5  A Modification of a Contract or a Framework agreement during its term shall be considered 
substantial for the purposes of Rule 9.3.1(e) where one or more of the following conditions is 
met:  

(a) the Modification renders the Contract or Framework Agreement materially different in 
character from the one initially concluded; 

(b) the Modification introduces conditions which, had they been part of the initial 
procurement procedure, would have: 

(i) allowed for the admission of other Tenderer than those initially selected, 

(ii) allowed for the acceptance of a Tender other than that originally accepted, or 

(iii) attracted additional participants in the procurement procedure; 

(c) the Modification changes the economic balance of the Contract or Framework 
Agreement in favour of the Contractor in a manner which was not provided for in the 
initial Contract or Framework Agreement; or Page 128



(d) the Modification extends the scope of the Contract or Framework Agreement 
considerably; 

(e) a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Council had initially awarded the 
Contract or Framework Agreement in cases other than those provided for in paragraph 
Rule 9.3.1(d). 

9.3.6 Where 9.3.1(a) applies, and the Framework Agreement or Contract provides in writing for an 
extension to the length of the Framework Agreement or Contract’s term and the following 
conditions are met:  

a. The extension is for substantially the same works, supplies and/or services provided in the 
original Framework Agreement or Contract;  
 

b. The financial terms for the extension are as agreed in the original Framework Agreement or 
Contract and deliver Best Value to the Council; 
 

c. The OJEU/FTS notice or other advertisements for the Framework Agreement or Contract 
stated that an extension Contract may be awarded;  
 

d. The estimated value of the Framework Agreement or Contract in the OJEU/FTS notice or 
other advertisements took account of the potential extension; and 
 

e. The length of the extension is no longer than that permitted by the original Framework 
Agreement or Contract;  

the decision to award the extension may be taken by the SRO for the relevant service and 
the Director of Procurement (STAR). 

9.4 Procedure for Modifications 

9.4.1 To apply for a Modification the ASO must provide a copy of the original signed contract, fill in 
the Modification Form and follow the process as set out in the Procurement Handbook.  

9.4.2 No commitment should be made to a potential Contractor prior to completion of modification 
procedure. 

9.4.3 The Director of Procurement (STAR) is responsible for ensuring a complete record of all 
Modifications is kept and a record of the decision approving a Modification and the reasons 
for it must be submitted to STAR to be stored on the electronic procurement portal. 

10. Declarations of Interest and Anti-Bribery and Corruption 
10.1 The Council‘s reputation with regards to procurement activity is important and should be 

safeguarded from any imputation of dishonesty or corruption.  All elected Members of the 
Council and Officers are reminded of their responsibilities in relation to gifts, hospitality and 
any conflicts of interest and should ensure they comply with the obligations set out in the 
Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct and the Officers’ Code of Conduct respectively and any 
other relevant policies, guidance or strategies relating to bribery, fraud and corruption issued 
or endorsed by the Council from time to time 

10.2 Any Officer or Member must declare any interest which could influence their judgement in 
relation to procurement activity in accordance with the Council’s Codes of Conduct. 

10.3 No gifts or hospitality should be accepted from any Bidders or Tenderers involved in 
procurement activity except in accordance with the Council’s Codes of Conduct.  

Page 129



11. Contract Management 
11.1 All Contracts must have a Council Contract Manager (“Contract Manager”) for the entirety 

of the Contract. In the event that there is no named Contract Manager the ASO will fulfil the 
role of Contract Manager.  

11.2 The Contract Manager will be responsible for reviewing monitoring and evaluating the 
contract to ensure that its provisions and the services within it are being followed and 
performed as they should be.  

11.3 During the life of the Contract, the Contract Manager should monitor the Contract in 
respect to the following: 

a. Performance (against agreed KPIs where relevant); 

b. Compliance with specification and contract; 

c. Cost; 

d. Any Best Value duties ; 

e. Continuous Improvement; 

f. User satisfaction; and 

g. Risk management. 

11.4 Before the end of the Contract, the Contract Manager will work with STAR to give adequate 
time to prepare for the end of the Contract, and where appropriate, plan for the 
preparatory steps of the pre-procurement stage. 

11.5 STAR can provide advice and support on good practice in performance management of 
Contracts.  

11.6 All Contracts must be included and published on the Contracts Register maintained by STAR 
in line with the Local Government Transparency Code 2014. This is a mandatory 
requirement and it is the responsibility of the SRO for each Service to ensure that they have 
informed STAR of the Contracts they are responsible for and provided them with the 
information necessary to update the Contracts Register accordingly. 

12. Retaining Relevant Documents 
12.1 All records in relation to the award of Contracts and the associated procurement process, 

including supporting documentation, shall be stored by STAR in an electronic filing system 
to be available for inspection by the Council’s internal and external auditors, or Officer, 
immediately upon request. Records will be retained in accordance with relevant regulations 
applicable to electronic record retention. 

12.2 All contracts shall be returned to the Council by STAR and must be retained as follows: 

Contracts not under seal and with a 
value between £5,000 

and £249,999.99 

 

for six years after the end of the Contract 

Page 130



 

 

12.3 If legislation related to any individual Contract stipulates a longer retention period than this, 
then the legislation requirements takes precedence over the Council’s minimum periods. 

12.4 Once executed, the Council shall retain one original of the complete Contract documents in line 
with the timescales in the table above and one copy of the complete Contract documents shall 
be provided to the Contractor.  

 
  

all sealed Contracts and Contracts with 
a value of £250,000 and above 

for twelve years after the end of the Contract 

Contracts that are grant funded 
regardless of value 

Must comply with retention period above or the 
terms and conditions of the grant, whichever is 
the longer 

Page 131



SCHEDULE 1  
Local arrangements for Trafford Council 

There are no local arrangements. 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 132



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

P
age 133



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Rules 1.3 , 1.4 and 1.5 to be 
replaced  
 
 
 
 

Streamlining the rules New Wording Each of the STAR Authorities 

have agreed to establish and 

participate in a joint committee 

(the “Joint Committee”) and 

have agreed to delegate their 

Executive and to the extent 

that the activities of the Joint 

Committee are not executive 

functions the STAR 

Authorities delegates to the 

joint committee the power to 

do anything which is 

calculated to facilitate, or is 

conducive or incidental to, 

the discharge of the 

Procurement Functions 

delegated to it. 

 

The Rules ensure that 
Procurement Functions are 
undertaken in a legally 

P
age 134



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
compliant, transparent, fair and 
competitive manner. These 
Rules shall apply to all 
procurement activity where the 
Council is to procure any 
Goods, Services or the 
execution of Works, or enters 
into a Concessions Contract as 
either a contracting authority or 
commissioner of such, 
regardless of the origin of 
funding (such as external 
grants, partnership funding, 
pooled or joint budgets for 
example). 
 
These Rules allow for Joint 
Procurement activity to be 
undertaken by STAR 
Procurement on behalf of some 
or all of the STAR Authorities 
and any other Contracting 
Authorities (together the 
Participating Authorities) who 
may, from time to time opt to 
participate in the Joint 
Procurement. The Participating 
Authorities will select one of 
their number to act as lead in 

P
age 135



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
the process (Lead Authority).  
The Lead Authority will draft a 
Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) to be agreed and signed 
by the Participating Authorities.  
The MOU will set out the 
commitment of resources, and 
other considerations that each 
will dedicate to the Joint 
Procurement activity.  The 
Participating Authorities and 
Officers must follow their own 
governance procedures and 
these Contract Procedure Rules 
as appropriate. 
 
 
 
 

2.1 Removal of reference to EU 
Law 

No longer applicable in this 
instance  

Change to text  Change reference from EU Law 

to English Law 

2.5  Removal of Definitions from 
this part of Document 

Streamlining the rules  Create separate 
schedule for definitions  

Deletion of definitions from Rule 

2 and place in a new Schedule 2  

P
age 136



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
3. Insertion of 3 new Rules at 
the start of section 3. 

Additional Clarity as to the basic 
Principles and Responsibilities  

Additional Rules at start 
changing numbering for 
the  rest of section  

New text: 

3.1 Value for money is 

fundamental to the procurement 

activity carried out by the 

Council. This should be 

achieved through competition, 

unless there are compelling 

reasons to the contrary. 

3.2 In addition to these Rules, 

above set financial Regulation 

Thresholds, procurement 

undertaken by the Council is 

subject to a legal framework 

which encourages free and 

open competition and value for 

money, to ensure that the public 

procurement market is open and 

competitive and that suppliers 

are treated equally and fairly. 

The legislative rules cover 

aspects such as advertising of 

P
age 137



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
contracts, procedures for 

assessing company credentials, 

awarding the contracts and 

remedies (penalties) when these 

rules are breached. 

3.3 When procurement activity is 

not subject to the Public 

Contracts Regulations because 

the estimated value of a contract 

falls below the relevant financial 

Regulations Threshold, Officers 

and elected Members must 

adhere to these Rules. 

 

P
age 138



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
3.5 d deleted and replaced with 
new text. 

Inclusion of point regarding social 
value 

New text  3.5 d will now read as follows: 

The need to procure 
responsibly  by considering  

how what it is to be procured 

may improve social, 

environmental and economic 

well-being of the Council’s 

relevant area. 

3.5e amended with additional 
text.  

To include text from the original 
3.5d still necessary but as part of 
related 3.5e 

Amendment to original 
text of 3.5e 

3.5e will now read as follows 

The need to ensure Value for 
Money, Best Value and 

achieve efficiencies by 

administering procurement 

processes which are cost 

effective. 

P
age 139



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Deletion of existing 3.5g,h,i and l 
and creation of new 3.5g 

Streamlining the rules Deletion and new text Existing 3.5g, h, I and L will be 

deleted with a new 3.5 g reading 

as follows: 

The need to ensure legislative 
compliance in procurement 

processes and award of 

contracts. 

Addition of new 3.5j Streamlining the rules New text New 3.5j to read as  

“The need to Social Value by 
considering and evaluating 
Social Value as part of the 
procurement process including 
the use of the Social Value Portal 
for all over £50,000 contracts.” 
 

P
age 140



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Deletion of existing 4.2 e and 
insertion of new 4.2 e, f and g 

Additional Clarity on Contracts 
which these rules do not appy 

Deletion and new text Existing 4.2 e will be deleted 

and replaced with new 4.2 e, f 

and g as follows: 

4.2e Grant funding Agreements 

4.2f Certain Qualifying Contracts 

between entities within the 

public sector 

4.2g Any contracts specifically 

excluded by relevant legislation  

P
age 141



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Deletion of existing 5.2.1 and 
replaced with new text 

Streamlining the new rules Deletion and new text Existing 5.2.1 to be deleted and 

replaced as follows: 

Once the PID has been received, 

the ASO, together with the APO, 

must conduct an options 

appraisal of the procurement 

options and will determine, as a 

minimum:  

Contract value; 

the most viable route to market;   

procurement process 

requirements and associated 

documentation;  

market research, engagement 

and consultation requirements;  

associated implications; 

key actions; 

procurement timescales against 

approval requirements;  

Specification or Quotation 

Specification as appropriate; 

P
age 142



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Social Value and the economic, 

social and environmental 

wellbeing of the borough and the 

benefit which the procurement 

process can bring to the 

community and  have regard to 

the duty to secure continuous 

improvement in accordance with 

Best Value. 

Further information on the above 

can be found in the Procurement 

Handbook. 

 

P
age 143



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
5.2.3 and 5.2.4 to be deleted 
and replaced with new 5.2.3 and 
5.2.4 

Streamlining the new rules Deletion and new text Delete existing 5.2.3 and 5.2.4 

and replaced with following 

5.2.3 The ASO and APO will 

seek advice and guidance from 

STAR Legal and/or from 

colleagues on a wider basis 

where necessary or desirable. 

5.2.4 The ASO will liaise with 

STAR to develop either a 

Specification or a quotation 

request commensurate to the 

scope of the Goods, Services, 

execution of Works or 

Concessions Contract. 

 

 

Rules 5.3.2 and 5.3.3 from 
originals CPRS to be deleted 

Streamlining of rules  Deletions of Rules 
referenced 

Rules 5.3.2 and 5.3.3 from 

originals CPRS to be deleted 

P
age 144



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
New Rule to be inserted at start 
of section 5.3 leading to change 
in numbering with existing 5.3.1 
now becoming 5.3.2 and so on 

Additional Clarity to Framework 
Agreements and DPS 

Insertion of new Rule 
5.3.1 

New Rule 5.3.1 to be inserted 

and to read as follows: 

For the avoidance of doubt, a 

Framework Agreement or DPS 

is generally considered suitable 

where it has either been entered 

into by: 

a)the Council in compliance with 

these Rules; or 

b)another local authority, a local 

authority purchasing consortium 

or central government where the 

Framework Agreement or DPS 

has been tendered and awarded 

in accordance with procurement  

legislation, and the Council is 

identified as a contracting 

authority. 

 

P
age 145



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
A 5.3.2 c to be added to new  
5.3.2 

Additional Clarity to Framework 
Agreements and DPS 

Insertion of new text to 
new 5.3.2 

5.3.2 c to be added to new 5.3.2 

and to read as follows: 

The correct contractual 

documentation is entered into in 

accordance with approval 

requirements. 

A new 5.3.3 to be inserted Additional Clarity to Framework 
Agreements and DPS 

Insertion of new Rule 5.3.3 to be added and to read as 

follows: 

Framework Agreements must not 

be for more than four years 

(including options to extend) 

unless otherwise authorised by 

the SRO for Legal. 

 

Rule 5.5.4 under original 
numbering to be deleted 

Streamlining of rules Deletion of existing Rule Rule 5.5.4 under original 

numbering to be deleted 

P
age 146



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
New Rule to be inserted at start 
of section 5.5 leading to change 
in numbering with existing 5.5.1 
now becoming 5.5.2 and so on 

Additional Clarity to estimating the 
total value of a contract  

Insertion of new Rule Insertion of new Rule 5.5.1: 

Rule 5.5 is applicable to the 

procurement of all contracts 

where an existing Framework 

Agreement or DPS is not being 

used to make an award of 

contract.. 

 

5.5.2  removal of reference to 
Frameworks or DPS 

Streamlining of rules Deletion of words from 
Rule 

5.5.2  removal of reference to 

Frameworks or DPS 

P
age 147



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
5.5.3  text to be replaced Streamlining of rules Original text replaced 5.5.3 to now read as follows: 

The Council must not split 

Contracts in order to avoid public 

procurement rules or calculate 

the value of the Contract in such 

a way as to deliberately avoid 

exceeding the Regulation 

Thresholds or any threshold 

identified in these Rules. The 

value of a Contract should be 

calculated as follows and applies 

to the aggregate value of the 

Contract Agreement: 

Yearly potential contract value 
X 
Contract period in years 
(including any option to 
extend) = total value 
 

 

P
age 148



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
5.5.4 text to be replaced Streamlining of rules Original text replaced Amended 5.54 to read as follows 

The value of a Framework 

Agreement or DPS means the 

maximum estimated amount 

payable by the users of the 

Framework Agreement or DPS 

for the Goods, Services or 

execution of Works (excluding 

VAT) under Call-off Contracts 

entered into over the entire 

possible duration of the 

Framework Agreement or DPS. 

 

P
age 149



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Section 5.5 Table 1 Value 
Bands  A and B for Goods, 
Services and Concessions  to 
be amended. The Word Chest 
be deleted and replaced by 
Electronic Procurement Portal 

Potential Decision to be taken to 
amend Value bands for Goods, 
Services and Concessions 

Value Band A and Band 
B Value in table 1 to be 
changed 

Original value band  A of £0 - 

4999.99 to be changed to value 

band of £0 - £9999.99 

 

Original value Band B of £5000 

up to £24999.999  to be changed 

to £10000  up to £24999.99 

 

“Chest” to be replaced by  

Electronic Procurement Portal  

 

Section 5.5 Table for Works, 
and Public Works Concession 
Value Bands  A and B to be 
amended 
 
The Word Chest be deleted and 
replaced by Electronic 
Procurement Portal 

Potential Decision to be  taken to 
amend Value bands for Works, 
and Public Works Concession 

Value Band A and B to 
be amended 

Original value band  A to be 

changed to value band of £0 - 

£9999.99. 

Original value Band B to be 

changed to £10000 to 

£24,999.99  

The Word Chest be deleted and 

replaced by Electronic 

Procurement Portal 

P
age 150



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
5.5.6  Amend which  bands 
require ASO determination of 
procurement activity  

Streamlining of the rules  Amend Text in Rule 
5.56 

Change the values B and C for 

B and D for Goods, Services 

and Concession Contracts  and 

Change the Value bands from B 

and C to C and E for Works and 

Public Works Concession 

Contracts. 

5.5.9 to be deleted  Streamlining of the rules Delete Text Delete Rule 5.59 

5.6.1 to be deleted Streamlining of the rules Delete Text Delete Rule 5.6.1 

New 5.61 to be amended with 
removal of reference to  EU 
Directives 

Streamlining of the rules Delete relevant text Deleted “with the EU Directives 

and” from last sentence of new 

5.6.1 

Delete 6.1.1 Streamlining of the rules Delete Text Delete Rule 6.1.1 

6.2.4 to be amended  Streamlining of the rules Amend Text Delete the word ‘chest’ and 

replace with the words  

‘electronic procurement portal. 

P
age 151



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Delete existing wording from 
6.3.2 and replace with new 
wording  

Streamlining of the rules Deletion and Addition of  
new text  

Replace all of the existing text 

for 6.3.2 with the following : 

Approval for any amendments 

(whether to submissions by 

bidders or to requirements by 

the Council) must be sought 

from the Director of 

Procurement (STAR) in 

consultation with STAR Legal. 

An example of this may be a 

Quote may be amended after 

the closing date for submission 

if the amendment is made only 

in order to correct an 

arithmetical error. 

P
age 152



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Amend rule 6.4. 1 Streamlining of the rules Deletion of some text 

from end of rule 6.4.1  
Delete following text from Rule 

6.4.1: 

If arithmetical errors are found 

they should be notified to the 

Bidder, who should be 

requested to confirm or 

withdraw their Quote. 

Alternatively, if the rates in the 

Quote prevail over the overall 

price, an amended Quote may 

be requested to accord with the 

rates given by the Tenderer. 

Delete Rules 6.4.3 and 6.4.4  Streamlining of the rules Deletion of Text  Delete Rules 6.4.3 and 6.4.4  

Amend Text in 6.4.2 Streamlining of the rules Amend Text Delete the word ‘chest’ and 

replace with ‘electronic 

procurement portal’ 

P
age 153



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
6.5.1  Delete original text and 
replace with new Text 

Streamlining of the rules Deletion of Text and 
new Text inserted  

Delete all original text and 

replace with the following : 

All Quotes, including those in 
mini-competitions under 
Framework Agreements, must 
be confirmed in writing before a 
decision to award can be made 
and all Quotes must be stored 
on The electronic procurement 
portal.  
 

    

7.1.1 Amend Text Streamlining the rules Amend text Delete the word ‘chest’ and 

replace with the words 

‘electronic procurement portal’ 

P
age 154



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
 
7.1.4 Delete original text and 
replace with new text  
 

Streamlining the rules New wording  Delete original text for 7.1.4 and 

replace with the following : 

‘All communications relating to 
Tenders must be via the 
electronic procurement portal for 
reasons of transparency and in 
order that a record can be 
maintained. 
 

 
7.1.5 (becomes 7.1.4) 
All communications relating to 
Tenders must be recorded via 
The Chest 
 

Additional clarity as to the reason 
for communicating via the Chest 
 

Additional wording 
 

All communications relating to 
Tenders must be recorded on 
electronic procurement portal’for 
reasons of transparency and in 
order that a record can be 
maintained. 

7.2 
Pre- and Post- Tender 
Clarification Procedures 
 

Streamlining the rules Amend 7.2.1 to direct 
the ASO to seek 
guidance from STAR 
and procedure in the 
Handbook to be 
followed 
 

7.2.2 – 7.2.5 deleted 

P
age 155



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
7.3.4 
Delete original text and replace  

Streamlining the rules Deletion and 
Amendment 

Delete original text and replace 
with the following: 
 
If less than three Tenders are 
received then advice must be 
sought from the Director of 
Procurement (STAR) on how to 
proceed. Any decision must be 
recorded in writing and stored on 
the electronic procurement 
portal. 

 
Delete existing 7.4.1 and 7.4.2 
and insert new 7.4.1  

Streamlining the rules Deletion and 
Amendment  

Delete existing 7.4.1 and 7.4.2 
and insert new 7.4.1 as follows: 
Tenders are to be verified and 
opened in accordance with the 
procedures set out in the 
Procurement Handbook. 

7.6.5 
Officers must ensure 
transparency and fairness 
during the evaluation process 

Duplication of fundamental 
principles and theme throughout 
the CPRs 

Remove Deleted 

7.6.2 
Abnormally low quotes. 

Clarification of process Amendment 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAR and the ASO will together 
identify whether any of the 
Quotes received are abnormally 
low and where it is determined 
that a Quote is abnormally low, 
the ASO must take advice from 
STAR on how to proceed.    

P
age 156



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
7.6.4 Delete original text and 
replace 

Streamlining the rules Deletion and 
Amendment  

Delete the word ‘chest’ and 
replace with the words 
‘electronic procurement portal’ 

7.6.5 new rule to be added  Streamlining the rules New text for new rule  Add in new 7.6.5 to read as 
follows: 
In accordance with the Council’s 
risk-based sourcing policy, the 
APO may require a best and final 
offer from more than one 
Tenderer. 
 

7.7.6 Amend text Streamlining the rules Deletion and 
replacement of text  

Delete the word ‘chest’ and 
replace with the words 
‘electronic procurement portal’ 

7.7.8 
A STAR Legal Officer will, 
where necessary, advise on the 
formalities for completion of the 
contract by parties other than 
the Council and how to ensure 
that the Contract is legally 
binding. 

For clarity and streamlining 
Covered by 7.7.9 

Remove Delete 7.7.8 
 
Amend 7.7.9 to: 
Contract award letters, feedback 
to Tenderers, including any 
incidental documentation must 
be approved by the APO prior to 
sending and STAR Legal will 
advise on the contract Terms 
and Conditions where the value 
of the Contract is over the 
Regulation Thresholds. 

8.1.2 Additional text  Clarification of process Amendment 
 

Add at end 8.1.2 as follows: 
f. Standards of Performance 
g. Limitations of liability  

P
age 157



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
8.4.1 Transfer of Contracts 
To carve out contractor group 
restructures 

 
Such restructures are referred to 
under rule 9 (modifications) 

 
Cross reference to rule 
9 

 
8.4.1 Unless Rule 9.3.1(d) 
applies…. 

9.1.2 additional text  
 

Clarification of process Amend text Amend Rule 9.1.2 to read as 
follows: 
An exemption is an exemption 
to the requirements  under these 
CPRS only and cannot  be 
considered where the contract 
value is above threshold. 

9.2.1 Delete existing text and 
replaced with new text  

Streamlining the rules  Delete text and Insert 
new text 

Delete existing text and replace 
as follows: 
To apply for an exemption the 
ASO must fill in the Exemption 
Form and follow the process as 
set out in the Procurement 
Handbook 

9.2.2 Delete existing text and 
replaced with new text  

Streamlining the rules  Delete text and Insert 
new text 

Delete existing text and replace 
as follows: 
 For avoidance of doubt where 
either Rule 6.2.4 or Rule 7.3.4 
applies then an Exemption Form 
should not be completed. 
 

Delete Rules 9.2.3, 9.2.6 and 
9.2.7  

Streamlining the rules Delete Text Delete Rules 9.2.3, 9.2.6 and 
9.2.7 

P
age 158



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
9.3 Modifications 
Streamlining of the rules 

In certain circumstances, where a 
contract allows for an extension of 
its term, there should be a 
streamlined approval process. 

Provide a process 
whereby there is a 
streamlined approval 
process – SRO for the 
service and the Director 
of Procurement (STAR).  
In practice the existing 
form can be adapted 
and/or individual 
authority directorates 
may decide to delegate 
this authority. 

Delete  
 9.3.6 and replace with: 
Where 9.3.1(a) applies, and the 
Framework Agreement or 
Contract provides in writing for 
an extension to the length of the 
Framework Agreement or 
Contract’s term and the 
following conditions are met:  
a. The extension is for 
substantially the same works, 
supplies and/or services 
provided in the original 
Framework Agreement or 
Contract;  
b. The financial terms for 
the extension are as agreed in 
the original Framework 
Agreement or Contract and 
deliver Best Value to the 
Council; 
c. The OJEU/FTS notice or 
other advertisements for the 
Framework Agreement or 
Contract stated that an 
extension Contract may be 
awarded; and 
d. The estimated value of 
the Framework Agreement or 
Contract in the OJEU/FTS 
notice or other advertisements 

P
age 159



PROPOSED AMENDMENT RATIONALE ACTION PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
took account of the potential 
extension; and 
e. The length of the 
extension is no longer than that 
permitted by the original 
Framework Agreement or 
Contract;  
the decision to award the 
extension may be taken by the 
SRO for the relevant service 
and the Director of Procurement 
(STAR). 
 

9.4 
Procedure for Modifications 
Streamlining of the rules 

Many of the provisions in the CPRs 
relate to process and need not be 
part of the rules. 

Remove some of the 
provisions from the rules 
and instead refer to 
process in the 
Handbook and 
completion of the form. 

Consequential amendments to 
9.4 

Definitions 
Move to an appendix 
 

 
For greater clarity 

 
Some definitions 
added/removed as a 
consequence of the 
amendments to the 
rules. 

 
Some definitions 
added/removed as a 
consequence of the 
amendments to the rules. 

P
age 160


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 External Audit Progress report
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12

	7 Audit Strategy Memorandum
	8 2021-22 AGC Internal Audit Q3 Report
	9 Accounting Policies 2021/22
	10 2021-22 AGC Counter Fraud Team Q3 Report
	11 2022-23 AGC Internal Audit Plan Report
	12 Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2021/22
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2021/22
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q3 2021/22

	13 Contract Procedure Rules
	CPRs Rochdale and STAR feedbackrs172 (004)ab
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Interpretations and Definitions
	3.	Basic Principles and Responsibilities
	4.	Contracts to which these Rules do not apply
	5.	Preparation Steps
	Officers and elected Members must refer to the Procurement Handbook before undertaking any activity in connection with procurement.
	5.1	Governance Requirements: Approval Process
	5.2	Appraisal of the Procurement Options
	5.3	Framework Agreements and DPS
	5.4	Market Research, Engagement and Consultation
	5.5	Estimating the Total Value of a Contract
	5.6	Standards and Award Criteria

	6.	Quotes
	6.1	Requests for Quotes
	6.2	Submission and Receipt of Quotes
	6.3	Amendments to Quotes
	6.4	Evaluation of Quotes
	6.5	Contract Award – through a Quotation Process

	7.	Tenders
	7.1	Invitations to Tender
	7.3	Submission and Receipt of Tenders
	7.4	Verifying and Opening Tenders
	7.5	Amendments to Tenders
	7.6	Evaluation of Tenders
	7.7	Contract Award – through a Tender process
	7.8	Enquiries about the Tender process

	8.	Contract Provisions and Contract Formalities
	8.1	Contract Provisions
	8.2	Contract Formalities
	8.3	Contracts under Seal
	8.4	Transfer of Contracts

	9.	Exemptions and Modifications
	9.1	Exemptions
	9.2	Procedure for Exemptions
	9.3	Modifications to a Contract or Framework Agreement
	9.4	Procedure for Modifications

	10.	Declarations of Interest and Anti-Bribery and Corruption
	11.	Contract Management
	12.	Retaining Relevant Documents
	SCHEDULE 1

	Amendments Table rs182


